NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICIES

SECTION 10 - STUDENTS

Table of Contents

STUDENT ADMISSION POLICY AND PROCEDURES FOR FULL-TIME PROGRAM	IS3
ENROLLMENT FOR THOSE CONVICTED OF FELONIES	5
MINOR STUDENT RESIDENCY	7
STUDENT ATTENDANCE	14
PHYSICAL RESTRAINT OF STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES	17
SECLUSION OF STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES	18
DIRECT THREAT	20
EDUCATIONAL SERVICES FOR STUDENTS UNDER SECTION 504 AND TITLE II	OF
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT	21
ADULT STUDENT BEHAVIOR	26
SECONDARY STUDENT BEHAVIOR	33
DISCIPLINARY REMOVAL OF SECONDARY STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES	45
GUN-FREE SCHOOLS - SECONDARY STUDENT SUSPENSION	51
STUDENT BULLYING	53
HAZING	58
STUDENT POSSESSION OF DANGEROUS WEAPONS	59
STUDENTS, DRUGS, AND ALCOHOL	62
STUDENT SEARCH AND SEIZURE	64
SEARCH AND SEIZURE OF TECHNOLOGY CENTER PROPERTY ASSIGNED TO	
STUDENT	66
ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICINE TO MINOR STUDENTS	67
STUDENT DIABETES CARE AND MANAGEMENT	72
FOOD ALLERGIES	75
TUITION REFUND	76
POST MILITARY EDUCATION	77
STUDENT GRADES	78

WORK-BASED LEARNING	81
LIVE WORK	83
STUDENT ORGANIZATIONS:	SPONSORSHIP AND CLOSED STUDENT FORUMS86

NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY Adopted:

STUDENT ADMISSION POLICY AND PROCEDURES FOR FULL-TIME PROGRAMS

The purpose of this policy is to set out the eligibility requirements and guidelines for admitting students to the technology center. It is the policy of the board of education that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, religion, disability, veteran status, sexual orientation, or age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to, discrimination under any education program or service or any other activity for which the board is responsible.

Secondary students residing within the technology center district must be enrolled in a high school or participate in a home-school curricular program in order to attend a technology center program tuition free. Adult students residing within the technology center district will be charged in-district tuition.

Secondary and adult students residing outside of the technology center district shall be charged out-of-district tuition.

All secondary and adult students must complete an application process to be considered for enrollment. All students are admitted to career programs based on their interest, indicators of ability to succeed in their chosen occupation, aptitude and prior performance in school and work. In addition, other factors may be considered that affect the student's ability to fully participate or complete a program, or to obtain professional credentials at the program's conclusion.

Students may be admitted to specified programs on an advanced standing status provided they meet certain criteria.

Procedures

The purpose of these procedures is to establish written guidelines to be followed if a person seeks to appeal a decision to deny him/her admission to a full-time program pursuant to the board's above policy.

General Information

Any person seeking admission to the technology center or to a full-time program has the right to appeal a denial of admission as set forth in these procedures. The purpose of these guidelines is to provide due process procedures for the appeal of admission denial decisions. All aspects of the appeal process shall be kept confidential. Only those individuals directly involved are to have access to any names or information. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the administration, faculty or any employee against any person seeking admission because the person is involved directly or indirectly in an appeal. Unless otherwise mutually agreed, the time limitations for appeal are binding on both the person seeking admission and the technology center.

Filing an Appeal

A person denied admission shall file a written request for an admission appeal hearing on an approved form. The appeal hearing request shall be filed with the superintendent if admission is denied to the technology center or with the campus director if admission is denied to a program. This request form must be filed within five (5) school days after receipt of notification of denial of admission to the technology center or a program. The request form for an appeal hearing must be completed with the following: (1) a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and (2) a statement why the person appealing believes the decision was incorrect.

Appeal Hearing

Within fifteen (15) school days of the receipt of the appeal request form, the superintendent or the campus director, as appropriate to the appeal, will convene a meeting of the appeal committee. The appeal committee consists of:

- 1. Voting members:
 - A. Chairperson is the superintendent (or designee) if admission is denied to the technology center. If admission is denied to a program, the campus director will serve as chairperson.
 - B. The assistant superintendent for instructional services.
 - C. A representative from the personnel department.
- 2. Non-voting member: recording secretary appointed by the chairperson.

Notice of the date, time and place for the appeal hearing shall be sent by U.S. Certified Mail to the person seeking admission or parent/guardian of secondary students under 18 years of age seeking admission. The appeal hearing will be closed. Only members of the appeal committee, the person seeking admission, parent/guardian of a secondary student under 18 years of age seeking admission, the person the complaint is against, and that person's supervisor, may be present for the entire meeting. The appeal hearing shall provide an opportunity for the person seeking admission to present a statement. The appeal committee will make a decision regarding the appeal by secret ballot. The recording secretary will record the votes in the minutes and give the results to the chairperson who will announce the results. Written notification will be sent by U.S. Certified Mail to the appealer. Minutes will be made available to the student or parent/guardian upon written request to the appeal committee chairperson. The decision of the appeal committee is final.

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER	
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

ENROLLMENT FOR THOSE CONVICTED OF FELONIES

Although the technology center exists to provide educational opportunities, certain circumstances require careful review and consideration prior to student enrollment at the center. No person seeking admission will be unilaterally excluded solely on the basis of a felony conviction, but those with felony convictions are subject to administrative review. This review will seek to determine whether the individual poses a threat to other students or staff and will educate the potential student regarding limited employment opportunities in certain fields due to the felony conviction.

Any currently-enrolled student who is charged with a felony must promptly disclose the charges to the campus director.

All situations will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis.

Administrative Review Process

Upon learning that an individual with a felony conviction has applied for enrollment at the technology center, an administrator will determine the nature of the crime, the applicant's version of the events, the amount of time which has passed since the crime was committed, rehabilitation which has occurred since the crime, the applicant's current status with the court system and any other factor deemed to be relevant to the specific circumstances.

Career Counseling

Certain careers, especially health related careers, often prohibit licensure/employment of individuals who have been convicted of:

- Violent crimes (e.g., murder, assault, armed robbery)
- Sex crimes of any nature or kind
- Manufacture, sale or possession of drugs with intent to distribute
- Child or elder abuse

Because many clinical sites will not permit a convicted felon from participating in clinicals, enrollment in such a program will not be permitted due to a student's inability to complete the program requirements.

Registered Sex Offenders

Individuals seeking admission to the technology center must disclose their status as a registered sex offender. A failure to make this disclosure will result in removal from the technology center. Applications for admission by registered sex offenders will be reviewed for the purpose of determining whether admission is in the best interest of other students

and the center. In any instance involving the admission of a registered sex offender, the student will be subject to specific guidelines, provided by the superintendent. These guidelines will govern the student's school enrollment, attendance, and participation in school activities. Violation of administrative guidelines issued to the student will result in the student's removal.

NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY Adopted:

MINOR STUDENT RESIDENCY

The technology center is established for the purpose of serving the educational interests of resident students. This includes homeless students, students who are not documented citizens, and students whose parents/guardians are not documented citizens. The district will not inquire into a student or parent/guardian's citizenship status as a part of enrollment, and will only use information regarding a student's living situation to better serve the student. The district will periodically review its practices and the documents it seeks as a part of establishing residency within the district to ensure that its processes are not overly burdensome and do not discourage the enrollment of homeless students and/or undocumented students.

Definitions

For purposes of this policy, the terms listed below have the following meanings:

"Residence," "residency" and "legal residence" mean the student's present place of abode, <u>provided</u> that it is a place where important family activities (such as sleeping, eating, working, relaxing, and playing) take place during a significant part of each day. Mere presence alone is not sufficient to establish residency. Documentary evidence that may be submitted to establish residency is identified below.

"Person having legal custody" means a person who is legally responsible for the care of the child pursuant to: the order of a court, a proper attorney-in-fact affidavit, or placement by a governmental agency responsible for making custody determinations and/or placements.

Basic Residency Requirements

State law provides that a child's residence for school purposes is the district in which the (1) parents, (2) guardian or (3) person having legal custody of the child holds legal residence. Children may also establish residency if their attorney-in-fact is a resident of the district. Children who are foster children are granted residency in the district if they attended the district prior to entering foster care, if their current or prior foster family is/was a resident of the district, or if another child in their current foster home attends school in the district pursuant to a transfer.

The technology center does not permit students to establish residency based on the affidavit of a person who has assumed permanent care and custody of the child under OKLA. STAT. tit. $70 \S 1-113$.

<u>Procedure for Resolving Residency Disputes</u>

The technology center recognizes that there may be occasions when there is a dispute regarding residency. Upon enrollment in the school the technology center will verify that the student is a resident of the district or is otherwise entitled to attend school at the technology center for any reason authorized by law. As a part of this verification process the

technology center will obtain an address from each student or the student's parent, guardian, or person having legal custody of the child. In providing an address to the technology center that is within the district's boundaries the student and student's parent, guardian, or person having legal custody of the child represent that this address is the student's residence. The technology center may also require, in order to verify residency, certified copies of court orders, guardianship documents, written agreements and affidavits relating to the care, custody and control of the student and any other information the technology center deems relevant.

If at any time a technology center administrator has a reasonable belief that the reported residence may not be the residence of the child for purposes of school attendance, the administrator shall notify the student's parent, guardian, or person having legal custody of the child that there is a question regarding the student's legal residency. The student's parent, guardian, or person having legal custody of the child shall be given an opportunity to submit information regarding the student's residency to the technology center's residency officer. All notices required by this policy shall be in writing. Additionally, reasonable alternative arrangements for documenting communications will be made for those persons who are visually impaired or otherwise unable to communicate in writing.

Information or documentation to prove student residency in the technology center shall include but not be limited to proof of provision of utilities, payments of ad valorem taxes, local agreements or contracts for purchasing/leasing housing, driver's licenses, income tax returns, notes, mortgages, contracts and any other source of proof that is not in conflict with statutory provisions relating to the residence of students.

Any question or dispute as to the residence of a student not deemed to be a "homeless student" shall be determined by the residency officer and the board of education pursuant to the following procedures:

- 1. The student's parent, guardian, or person having legal custody of the child must notify the residency officer in writing of the review request within three (3) school days from the date of written denial of admittance or from the date of written notification that the student is considered not to be a resident of the technology center. Upon receipt of a request for review, the residency officer shall allow the parent, guardian, or person having legal custody to provide additional pertinent information in accordance with the technology center's criteria and the statutory provisions regarding residency. This information must be submitted with the request for review.
- 2. The residency officer must render a decision and notify the student's parent, guardian, or person having legal custody of the child of the decision and reasoning therefore in writing within three (3) school days of receipt of the request for review.
- 3. If the student's parent, guardian, or person having legal custody of the child disagrees with the residency officer's decision, such person shall notify the residency officer in writing within three (3) school days of his or her receipt of the residency officer's decision. The residency officer will submit his or her findings and all documents reviewed to the board of education. The board of education will review the decision and the documents submitted on behalf of the technology center and the student and will render a decision at the next

board meeting. The decision of the board of education shall be the final administrative decision.

4. In an effort to place students in school as quickly as possible, timelines shall be followed unless due to emergency circumstances both parties agree to an extension of timelines.

Miscellaneous Policy Provisions

Hearings involving more than one student where students are related or residing in the same household may be consolidated at the discretion of the residency officer and the board of education.

If the residency dispute involves an 18-year-old student, all notices will be delivered to the student.

If already enrolled and attending school in the district, a student or students involved in a dispute related to the student's residency may remain in school until available appeals are exhausted when the student or the student's parent, guardian, or person having legal custody of the child has filed an appeal in the manner and within the time permitted by this policy.

The residency officer shall be in charge of maintaining the files related to a residency dispute, ensuring that the administrators and others directly involved in such a dispute forward their records of the dispute following their involvement, and otherwise keeping all communications involving the dispute intact.

The district's residency officer is the superintendent.

The board of education understands that there may be some instances where residency may be established on a date other than the date the student was enrolled in the technology center. For any period during which a student is enrolled at the technology center, but is not a resident of the district, the technology center may charge tuition if it is established that the student's parent, guardian, or person having legal custody of the child knew or should have known that the child or children who are the subject of the residency dispute were not residents of the district. The tuition shall be based on a per capita cost of educating a student in the technology center during the preceding year. This issue may be raised along with other issues related to the residency dispute and shall be heard in the same manner.

The technology center shall provide for educational services for homeless children as required by law.

The technology center reserves the right to require reverification of student residency at the beginning of each school term.

A copy of this policy shall be provided to the student's parent, guardian, or person having legal custody of the child as soon as possible following the inception of any residency dispute.

Special Definitions and Procedures Applicable to Homeless Children and Youth

Definitions

"Homeless children and youth" means students who lack fixed, regular and adequate nighttime residence, and includes:

- children and youths who are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or a similar reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; are abandoned in hospitals; or are awaiting foster care placement;
- 2. children and youth who have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings;
- 3. children and youths who are living in cars, parks, public spaces, buildings, substandard housing, bus or train stations, or similar settings; and
- 4. migratory children (as such term is defined in section 1309 of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965) who qualify as homeless.

Enrollment, Records and Immunizations

Federal law provides that homeless children and youth, individually or through a parent or quardian, may choose to attend the school in the area in which they are currently living. The technology center's residency officer will determine whether a student is a homeless child or youth for purposes of establishing residency and promptly advise the parent, guardian or person having legal custody of the child of the decision, both orally and in writing, if possible. If there is no such person, the residency officer will advise the student. The technology center will enroll each homeless student and permit his or her full participation in all school programs, whether or not the student is accompanied by a parent, quardian or person having custody of the child, and without proof of residence, current immunizations and traditional enrollment documentation, such as school medical/immunization records. The technology center's homeless liaison may assist the student and school in obtaining those items. A parent, guardian or person having legal custody of the child who disagrees with the residency officer's determination may appeal the decision to the board of education under the procedure identified in this policy. If there is no parent, guardian or person having legal custody of the child available, the student may appeal the decision.

<u>Appeals Procedures</u>

The technology center will make every effort to resolve disputes regarding homeless children at the lowest level possible by utilizing the following process:

1. At the time a homeless student seeks enrollment, the technology center will notify the student or his/her family of these procedures and provide the student/family with a copy of this policy.

- 2. The technology center will promptly notify the technology center's homeless coordinator that a homeless student seeks enrollment, and will seek to involve the coordinator in decisions regarding the student's education.
- 3. Students/families who disagree with a decision regarding the student's education may meet with the coordinator for an informal resolution. The coordinator will notify the student/family that a written complaint may be submitted within five (5) days (or longer if agreed upon by the parties).
- 4. If the coordinator receives a written complaint, the coordinator will prepare a decision (plan of action) and provide it to the student/family within five (5) days of receipt of the written complaint. The coordinator will also notify the student/family of the right to appeal to the superintendent.
- 5. Students/families who are still dissatisfied with a decision regarding the student's education may file a written appeal with the superintendent within five (5) days of receipt of the coordinator's plan. The superintendent will meet with the student/family within five (5) days of receipt of the appeal. The superintendent will issue a decision within five (5) days of the meeting with the student/family. The superintendent will also notify the student/family of the right to appeal to the board of education.
- 7. Students/families who are still dissatisfied with a decision regarding the student's education may file a written appeal with the board of education by submitting a written notice to the superintendent within five (5) days of the superintendent's decision. The appeal will be placed on the next agenda (or the following agenda, if the appeal is received after the agenda posting deadline) and the board's decision is final at the technology center level. Students/families who are still dissatisfied with a decision regarding the student's education may file an appeal with the Oklahoma State Department of Education utilizing the procedures established by the OSDE.

Special Definitions and Procedures Applicable to Transitioning Military Children

"Children of military families" means a school-aged child(ren), enrolled in kindergarten through twelfth grade, in the household of an active duty member.

"Active duty" means full-time duty status in the active uniformed service of the United States, including members of the National Guard and Military Reserve on active duty orders pursuant to Title 10, Sections 1209 and 1211 of the United States Code.

"Military student" means the child of a military family for whom the local education agency receives public funding and who is formally enrolled in kindergarten through twelfth grade.

"Transition" means (a) the formal and physical process of transferring from school to school or (b) the period of time in which a student moves from one school in the sending state to another school in the receiving state.

"Sending state" means the state from which a child of a military family is sent, brought, or caused to be sent or brought.

"Receiving state" means the state to which a child of a military family is sent, brought, or caused to be sent or brought.

"Uniformed service(s)" means the Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine Corps, Coast Guard as well as the Commissioned Corps of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration and Public Health Services.

Establishing Residency

State law provides that transitioning military children placed in the care of a noncustodial parent or other person standing in loco parentis, may attend school in the district in which the noncustodial parent or person standing in loco parentis to the transitioning military child holds legal residence. Similarly, transitioning military children placed in the care of a noncustodial parent or other person standing in loco parentis may continue to attend the school in which the student was enrolled while residing with the custodial parent. A special power of attorney relating to the guardianship of a military child and executed under applicable law shall be sufficient for purposes of enrollment and all other actions requiring parental participation and consent.

Enrollment

The technology center will promptly accept unofficial or "hand-carried" educational records and transcripts in lieu of official education records and transcripts for transitioning military children. Upon receipt of such records, the technology center will promptly enroll the transitioning military child. However, upon enrollment, the technology center will request official educational records and transcripts from the school in the sending state. The technology center's residency officer will determine whether a student is a transitioning military student for purposes of establishing residency and promptly advise the parent or other person standing in loco parentis of the decision, both orally and in writing, if possible. A parent or other person standing in loco parentis who disagrees with the residency officer's determination may appeal the decision to the board of education under the procedure identified above.

Course Level and Educational Program Placement

To the extent that this technology center is in a receiving state, the technology center may subsequently perform course placement and educational program evaluations of a transitioning military student. However, the technology center will initially place the transitioning military student in courses and programs comparable to those in which the student was a participant while in the sending state. The technology center will make these accommodations whether or not the student has fulfilled the necessary prerequisites in the sending or the receiving state.

Extracurricular Activities

When appropriate, the technology center will provide transitioning military children the opportunity to participate in extracurricular participation, regardless of application deadlines.

<u>Immunizations</u>

Transitioning military children shall have thirty (30) days from the date of enrollment to obtain any immunizations required by Oklahoma law. For a series of immunizations, such children must obtain initial vaccinations within thirty (30) days.

Tuition

The technology center may not charge tuition to a transitioning military child placed in the care of a noncustodial parent or other person standing in loco parentis who lives in a district other than that of the custodial parent if the parent or other person standing in loco parentis lives within the boundaries of this technology center.

Reference: 42 U.S.C. §11301 et seq., OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 1-113, 70 OKLA. STAT. §510.1

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER	
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

STUDENT ATTENDANCE

It is the policy of the technology center board of education that students be informed of expectations regarding their attendance. Attendance patterns established during school days are a major criteria utilized by employers in evaluating potential employees. Employers specify that they need employees who are at work and on time every days. Therefore, students are encouraged to establish a good attendance pattern. Secondary students and parents will be required to sign a form at the beginning of the school year stating they have read and understood the attendance policy and procedures. Adult students will be required to sign a form at the beginning of the school year stating they have read and understood the attendance policy and procedures.

Procedures For Secondary Students

Student Attendance Records - Maintenance and Storage

Attendance is recorded daily by the instructor and a cumulative record of attendance is maintained in the campus administrative office. This information is maintained in a permanent record. Secondary students must have the parent/guardian call the attendance office to report any attendance activity involving absences or leaving class early.

Tardies

A student will be considered tardy if he/she arrives after the starting time of the class. Tardies will be recorded in 15-minute increments. A pattern of excessive tardies may result in disciplinary action.

Truancy

A secondary student is considered to be truant if he/she intentionally fails to comply with the mandatory Oklahoma School Attendance Law. If a student is truant, no make-up work will be allowed, and a grade of zero (0) will be issued for the time the student is truant. Additional disciplinary action may be taken.

Leaving Class Early

Any student who leaves before the scheduled end of class may be considered to be absent for the entire day unless he/she has checked out through the attendance office. Secondary students must have parental/guardian permission. Time missed will be recorded in 15-minute increments.

Make-Up Work

Students are expected to make up the work missed while they were absent. It is the responsibility of the student to contact the instructor and make arrangements to complete

the work missed. No penalty will be assessed if the work is made up within two (2) days for each day missed. Make-up work shall be meaningful and relevant to the course missed. Some situations may require more time due to the nature of the career program. In these cases, the instructor will set the completion date for the make-up work.

Withdrawal from Career Program

A request to withdraw from class should be initiated through the instructor and the counselor. Secondary students must obtain permission from a parent/guardian and the student's high school principal to withdraw. Final approval of student withdrawal will be made by the campus director. Secondary students may be withdrawn from class upon the request of the student's sending school. Secondary students are automatically withdrawn after ten (10) consecutive days of absence if there has been no contact with the school by the student or his/her parents. Secondary students who do not meet minimum career program or certification attendance requirements may be withdrawn from a career program. Withdrawal does not relieve students of obligations related to textbooks, tools, equipment and payment of outstanding fees.

Operational Procedures for Absences from Full-Time Secondary Career Programs

The absences addressed in the following steps are per semester for career programs operating on a fall-spring semester basis. The following steps shall be utilized when dealing with student attendance:

- 1. After the equivalent of three (3) to five (5) absences, the parent or guardian will be contacted with supporting documentation and the instructor conferences with student.
- 2. After the equivalent of six (6) to nine (9) absences, the parent or guardian will be contacted with supporting documentation and the counselor/administrator conferences with student. The counselor/administrator schedules a conference with student and parent/guardian to place student in an attendance probationary contract outlining expectations and consequences.
- 3. After the equivalent of ten (10) absences, a student who violates the attendance probationary contract will be automatically withdrawn from the career program for violation of the attendance policy.

<u>Appeal</u>

If a student is dismissed due to a violation of the attendance policy, the student may appeal the dismissal by following the student appeal process hereinabove described. A student's failure to abide by the terms of a probation contract is also grounds for student dismissal from the career program.

Procedures for Adult Students

Student Attendance Records - Maintenance and Storage

Attendance is recorded daily by the instructor and a cumulative record of attendance is maintained in the campus administrative office. This information is maintained in a

permanent record. Adult students must call the attendance office to report any attendance activity involving absences or leaving class early.

Tardies

A student will be considered tardy if he/she arrives after the starting time of the class. Tardies will be recorded in 15-minute increments. A pattern of excessive tardies may result in disciplinary action.

Make-Up Work

Students are expected to make up the work missed while they were absent. It is the responsibility of the student to contact the instructor and make arrangements to complete the work missed. No penalty will be assessed if work is made up within two (2) days for each day missed. Make-up work shall be meaningful and relevant to the course missed. Some situations may require more time due to the nature of the career program. In these cases, the instructor will set the completion date for the work.

Withdrawal from Career Program

Adult students who do not meet minimum career program or certification attendance requirements may be withdrawn from a career program. Withdrawal does not relieve students of obligations related to textbooks, tools, equipment and payment of outstanding fees, including funds received from financial aid. Adult students may withdraw from the course at any time by submitting a written request. Adult students will be automatically withdrawn after ten (10) consecutive days of absence if there has been no contact with the technology center.

<u>Appeal</u>

If a student is dismissed due to a violation of the attendance policy, the student may appeal the dismissal by following the student appeal process hereinabove described. A student's failure to abide by the terms of the technology center's student attendance policy may be cause for dismissal from the career program.

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
BOTHED OF EDGOTHION TO MOT	Adopted:

PHYSICAL RESTRAINT OF STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

The purpose of this policy is to define the circumstances under which technology center personnel may use physical restraint for students with disabilities in compliance with those guidelines set forth in the SDE's Special Education Handbook ("Physical Restraint Guidelines").

For purposes of this policy, the term "physical restraint" is defined as a person's restriction that immobilizes or reduces the ability of a student to move his or her torso, arms, legs, or head freely. The term physical restraint does **not** include a physical escort. Physical escort means a temporary touching or holding of the hand, wrist, shoulder, or back for the purpose of inducing a student who is acting out to walk to a safe location.

Physical restraint should never be used for the purposes of discipline or as a punishment, to force compliance, as a convenience for staff or to prevent property damage. The use of chemical and/or mechanical restraint, as defined in the Physical Restraint Guidelines, is prohibited.

Technology center personnel may use physical restraint for students with disabilities <u>only</u> under the emergency circumstances identified in the Physical Restraint Guidelines and only if the elements identified by the Physical Restraint Guidelines exist.

The use of physical restraint for students with disabilities shall also be subject to any written Procedures utilized by the district to further explain the responsibilities of technology center staff members.

NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY Adopted:

SECLUSION OF STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

The purpose of this policy is to define the circumstances under which technology center personnel may use seclusion for students with disabilities in compliance those guidelines set forth in the SDE's Special Education Handbook ("Seclusion Guidelines").

For purposes of this policy, the term "seclusion" means the involuntary confinement of a student alone in a room or area from which the student is physically prevented from leaving. This includes situations where a door is locked as well as where the door is blocked by other objects or held by staff. Any time a student is involuntarily alone in a room and prevented from leaving should be considered seclusion regardless of the intended purpose of the name applied to this procedure or the name of the place where the student is secluded. Seclusion does not include timeout, which is a behavior management technique implemented or the purpose of calming and redirecting.

Seclusion should never be used for the purposes of discipline or as a punishment, to force compliance, as a convenience for staff or to prevent property damage. Seclusion should not be used to manage behavior.

Technology center personnel may use seclusion for students with disabilities <u>only</u> under the emergency circumstances identified in the Seclusion Guidelines and only if the elements identified by the Seclusion Guidelines exist.

School personnel may only utilize seclusion procedures if they have training in:

- 1. Conflict de-escalation;
- 2. The crisis cycle and interventions at each stage;
- Possible effects of seclusion;
- 4. Appropriate use of seclusion rooms (including escorting and placing a student in a seclusion room);
- 5. Hold current CPR and First Aid certification; and
- 6. Monitoring the wellbeing of students.

Seclusion training should be recurrent and with annual updates and result in some form of certification or credential.

Any student placed in seclusion based on the criteria in the Seclusion Guidelines must be continuously monitored visually and aurally by a school employee. Additionally, (a) the student must be allowed to go to the bathroom upon request, (b) the student must be permitted water to drink upon request, and (c) immediate action must be taken if the student displays any signs of medical distress.

A "seclusion room" is defined as a room or other confined area in which a student with a disability is placed in isolation from other persons from which the student is prevented from leaving. A seclusion room must meet the following criteria:

- 1. It must be of adequate size permitting the student to sit or lie down;
- 2. It must have adequate lighting;
- 3. It must be equipped with heating, cooling, ventilation, and lighting systems that are comparable to those in other rooms throughout the building where the seclusion room is located;
- 4. It must be free of any objections that pose a potential risk of harm to the student with a disability;
- 5. If equipped with a door that locks, the lock must automatically disengage in case of an emergency, such as fire or severe weather; and
- 6. It must allow continuous visual and auditory monitoring of the student with a disability.

The use of seclusion for students with disabilities shall also be subject to any written procedures utilized by the district to further explain the responsibilities of technology center staff members.

NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY Adopted:

DIRECT THREAT

"Direct threat" means an individualized determination that a student with a disability poses a direct threat to the health or safety of others, based upon reasonable judgment that relies on current medical knowledge or on the best available evidence, to ascertain: the nature, duration, and severity of the risk; the probability that the potential injury will actually occur; and whether reasonable modifications of policies, practices or procedures or the provision of auxiliary aids or services will mitigate the risk.

When the district intends to impose adverse action on a student with a disability based on a direct threat, written notice of the district direct threat inquiry will be provided to the parent of the student who is the subject of the direct threat inquiry. This written notice, subject to paragraph 6 below, will include:

- An invitation to provide documents and other information related to the inquiry and notice that if a response is not received, the direct threat inquiry will proceed with the documents and other information the district has available;
- 2. The name and contact information of the district employee conducting the inquiry;
- Identification of the appropriate district personnel responsible for making the determination of whether the student poses a direct threat to the health or safety of others;
- 4. Notice that the student will not be subject to disciplinary action on the basis of unfounded fear, prejudice, and stereotypes;
- 5. The district's determination that a student poses a direct threat to the health or safety of others will be an individualized assessment based upon reasonable judgment that relies on current medical knowledge or on the best available evidence, to ascertain: the nature, duration, and severity of the risk; the probability that the potential injury will actually occur; and whether reasonable modifications of policies, practices or procedures or the provision of auxiliary aids or services will mitigate the risk
- 6. Notice that in exceptional circumstances, such as situations where safety is of immediate concern, the district may take interim steps pending a final decision regarding adverse action against the student so long as minimal due process is provided in the interim and due process is offered later;
- 7. Notice of the student's applicable appeal rights in the event of discipline or other adverse action; and
- 8. A copy of this policy.

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER	
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

EDUCATIONAL SERVICES FOR STUDENTS UNDER SECTION 504 AND TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

The technology center recognizes its responsibilities to students who are or may be qualified persons with disabilities under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 ("Section 504") and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act ("Title II"). In an effort to ensure that technology center employees understand and implement the requirements of Section 504 and Title II, the board of education adopts the following policy.

Qualified Individual with a Disability

All qualified persons with disabilities within the jurisdiction of the technology center are entitled to a free appropriate public education ("FAPE"), regardless of the nature or severity of the person's disability. Section 504 and Title II define a person with a disability as any person who (a) has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities, (b) has a record of such an impairment or (c) is regarded as having such an impairment. The definition of disability shall be construed in favor of broad coverage of individuals, to the maximum extent permitted by Section 504 and Title II.

The term "physical or mental impairment" means (a) any physiological disorder or condition, cosmetic disfigurement, or anatomical loss affecting one or more of the following body systems: neurological; musculoskeletal; special sense organs; respiratory, including speech organs; cardiovascular; reproductive, digestive, genito-urinary; hemic and lymphatic; skin; and endocrine; or (b) any mental or psychological disorder, such as mental retardation, organic brain syndrome, emotional or mental illness, and specific learning disabilities. The phrase "physical or mental impairment" includes, but is not limited to, such contagious and noncontagious diseases and conditions as orthopedic, visual, speech and hearing impairments, cerebral palsy, epilepsy, muscular dystrophy, multiple sclerosis, cancer, heart disease, diabetes, mental retardation, emotional illness, specific learning disabilities, HIV disease (whether symptomatic or asymptomatic), tuberculosis, drug addiction, and alcoholism. The following are excluded from the term "physical or mental impairment:" (a) an individual who currently engages in the illegal use of drugs; (b) homosexuality and bisexuality; (c) transvestism, transsexualism, pedophilia, exhibitionism, voyeurism, gender identity disorders not resulting from physical impairments, or other sexual behavior disorders; (d) compulsive gambling, kleptomania, or pyromania; and (e) psychoactive substance use disorders resulting from current illegal use of drugs.

The term "major life activities" includes, but is not limited to, functions such as caring for one's self, performing manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, standing, lifting, bending, speaking, breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, thinking, communicating and working. A "major life activity" also includes the operation of a major bodily function, including but not limited to, functions of the immune system, normal cell growth, digestive, bowel, bladder, neurological, brain, respiratory, circulatory, endocrine and reproductive functions.

An impairment that substantially limits one major life activity need not limit other major life

activities in order to be considered a disability. Also, an impairment that is episodic or in remission is a disability if it would substantially limit a major life activity when active.

Mitigating Measures

The determination of whether an impairment substantially limits a major life activity shall be made without regard to the ameliorative effects of mitigating measures such as:

- medication, medical supplies, equipment, or appliances, low-vision devices (which do not include ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses), prosthetics including limbs and devices, hearing aids and cochlear implants or other implantable hearing devices, mobility devices, or oxygen therapy equipment and supplies;
- 2. use of assistive technology;
- 3. reasonable accommodations or auxiliary aids or services; or
- 4. learned behavioral or adaptive neurological modifications.

The ameliorative effects of the mitigating measures of ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses shall be considered in determining whether an impairment substantially limits a major life activity.

For purposes of this policy, a "qualified person with a disability" is a person with a disability who is (a) of an age during which it is mandatory under Oklahoma law to provide such services to persons with disabilities; (b) of an age during which persons without disabilities are provided such services; or (c) a person for whom a state is required to provide a FAPE under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.

Appropriate Education

An appropriate education may comprise education in cooperation with a sending school, which may offer education in regular classes, education in regular classes with the use of related aids and services, or special education and related services in separate classrooms for all or portions of the school day or education at the technology center. Special education may include specially designed instruction in classrooms, at home, or in private or public institutions and may be accompanied by related services such as speech therapy, occupational and physical therapy, psychological counseling and medical diagnostic services necessary to the child's education. While the technology center may not be involved in many of these education opportunities, it may be a provider of specially selected options.

An appropriate education in the sending school will include:

- Regular or special education and related aids and services designed to meet the individual education needs of students with disabilities as adequately as the needs of nondisabled students are met;
- The education of each student with a disability with nondisabled students, to the maximum extent appropriate to the needs of the student with a disability;

- Evaluation and placement procedures established to guard against misclassification or inappropriate placement of students, and a periodic reevaluation of students who have been provided special education or related services; and
- Establishment of due process procedures that enable parents and guardians to receive required notices, review their child's records and challenge identification, evaluation and placement decisions, and that provide for an impartial hearing with the opportunity for participation by parents and representation by counsel, and a review procedure.

The technology center will work, as appropriate, with the sending school to design education programs for student with disabilities to meet their individual needs to the same extent that the needs of nondisabled students are met. The technology center will provide the quality of education services to students with disabilities that equals the quality of services provided to nondisabled students. The technology center will provide teachers for students with disabilities who are trained in the instruction of individuals with disabilities. The technology center will provide comparable facilities for students with disabilities and make appropriate materials and equipment available. The technology center will not exclude students with disabilities from participating in nonacademic services and extracurricular activities on the basis of disability. The technology center will provide persons with disabilities an opportunity to participate in nonacademic services that is equal to that provided to persons without disabilities. These services may include transportation, health services, recreational activities, special interest groups or clubs sponsored by the technology center, and referrals to agencies that provide assistance to persons with disabilities and employment of students.

Educational Setting

The technology center will place students with and without disabilities in the same setting, to the maximum extent appropriate to the educational needs of the students with disabilities. The technology center shall place students in the regular education environment unless the technology center demonstrates that the education of the student in the regular education environment with the use of supplementary aids and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily. Students with disabilities will participate with nondisabled students in both academic and nonacademic services, including meals, to the maximum extent appropriate to their individual needs and the program in which they are enrolled.

As necessary, the technology center, in cooperation with the sending school and as related to the program in which the student is enrolled, will provide specific supplementary aids and services for students with disabilities to ensure an appropriate education setting. Supplementary aids may include, but are not limited to, interpreters for students who are deaf, readers for students who are blind, and equipment to make physical accommodations for students with mobility impairments.

Evaluation and Placement

The district shall annually undertake to identify and locate every qualified child with a disability residing in the district's jurisdiction who is not receiving a public education and take appropriate steps to notify children with disabilities and their parents or guardians of the district's duties under Section 504 and Title II.

Examples of situations in which school personnel may reasonably conclude that a student needs or is believed to need special education or related aids and services includes (a) when a teacher, based on observation of or work with the student, expresses a view that an evaluation is needed, or (2) when the parent of a student has requested an evaluation.

The technology center will work cooperatively with the sending district to make evaluation and placement decisions in accordance with appropriate procedures required by law.

Section 504/Title II Plan

When the sending school's multidisciplinary group determines that a student is eligible for educational services under Section 504 and Title II, it should work closely with the technology center to prepare a plan documenting how the technology center will participate to provide FAPE for that student. Any plan for a student will identify the educational services, related services and supplementary aids and services needed to meet the student's individual educational needs, the person(s) responsible for implementing each component of the plan, the starting and ending dates for each component and a date, no less than annually, on which the sending school will review the plan.

The technology center will provide appropriate education and related aids and services free of charge to students with disabilities and their parents or guardians, except for fees equally imposed on nondisabled persons or their parents or guardians.

Procedural Safeguards

The technology center will employ procedural safeguards regarding the identification, evaluation or educational placement of persons who, because of disability, need or are believed to need special instruction or related services. Technology center personnel will rely on sending schools to notify parents or guardians of any evaluation or placement actions and will allow parents or guardians to examine the student's records maintained by the technology center. The technology center relies on sending schools to provide parents or guardians with a copy of its Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973/Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act Information and Procedural Safeguards form annually at the student's Section 504 plan meeting and when the sending school (a) seeks parent or guardian consent for Section 504 evaluation or reevaluation, (b) receives a complaint from the parent or guardian alleging failure to comply with Section 504 or Title II requirements, (c) receives a request from the parent or guardian for a copy of the Procedural Safeguards form, and (d) takes any action with respect to the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of the student.

The technology center will participate in, as appropriate and consistent with its obligations to the student, an impartial hearing by an objective, neutral hearing officer that will allow parents or guardians to challenge identification, evaluation and placement procedures and decisions. If parents or guardians disagree with the technology center's decisions, they will be afforded an impartial hearing, with an opportunity for their participation and for representation by counsel. The technology center will participate fully in any impartial administrative review procedure by an objective, neutral review officer to parents or guardians who want to challenge the hearing decision. If the parent or guardian wants to challenge the administrative review decision, he or she may file an action in state or federal court. The technology center will defer, as appropriate, to the legal obligations of the sending school.

Retaliation

The technology center prohibits retaliation, intimidation, threats, or coercion of any person for opposing discrimination or for participating in the technology center's discrimination complaint process or making a complaint, testifying, assisting, appealing, or participating in any other discrimination complaint proceeding or hearing. The technology center will take steps to prevent the alleged perpetrator or anyone else at the technology center from retaliating against the alleged victim or any person who acts to oppose discrimination or participates in the complaint process. These steps include notifying students and employees that they are protected from retaliation, making sure that victims know how to report future problems and making follow-up inquiries to see if there have been any new incidents. If retaliation occurs, the technology center will take strong responsive action. Persons with complaints or concerns about the application of this policy should contact:

Northwest Technology Center, Attention: Superintendent 1801 11th Street, Alva, OK 73717

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER	
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

ADULT STUDENT BEHAVIOR

<u>Purpose</u>

The technology center serves adult and secondary students. A discipline code is provided for secondary students to inform students of the standards of conduct required of students, and of the consequences that attach to misconduct. School laws that prescribe procedures applicable to secondary students are, in some instances, not applicable to adult students. Accordingly, the technology center has established a separate policy applicable to adult students that explains the standards of conduct and civility expected of adult students and also explains the actions that may be taken when adult conduct violates those standards. Adults are held to standards of conduct that are no less than those which attach to secondary students attending the technology center. Educational opportunities available to adult students may be cut-short or terminated in instances where an adult student's conduct violates the approved standards or when a student, for other reasons, cannot fulfill program requirements essential to successful course completion.

In instances involving a student's dismissal or removal from a course or program, the technology center will utilize procedures that are fair and reasonable. The complete cooperation of students is encouraged to assure that all students have an opportunity to benefit from the educational opportunities available. Conduct which violates policies, rules and practices or which interferes with or disrupts learning must and will be addressed by school administration. This policy explains the technology center's standards of conduct and describes the procedure that will be used when it is necessary to remove a student from a course or program. Removal may involve a short or long period or may involve a permanent removal.

References in Policy

Reference to "administrator" means an assistant superintendent or the technology center staff member to whom the administration has delegated the responsibility for student discipline.

Reference to the "superintendent" refers to the superintendent of schools or the superintendent's designee.

Removal or dismissal refers to taking a student out of a course or program for a short period, a longer period, or permanently.

Procedures

1. Immediate Removal of a Student

Whenever an alleged violation of the *Adult Student Behavior Code* is reported to an administrator, he or she will ascertain whether the immediate removal of the student is required. This determination will be based on whether the

student's continued presence on campus would create, in the administrator's judgment, a dangerous and/or disruptive situation with regard to the continued operation and management of the school system. If dismissal is found necessary, the administrator shall document the justification in a report and immediately forward it to the superintendent, and contact the student.

2. Evidentiary Hearing

Upon notice of an alleged violation, the administrator will review the evidence relevant to the violation. If dismissal of the student is necessary before a hearing can be conducted, the hearing must be held as soon as possible, but not later than 72 hours of the dismissal. In case of waiver or non-attendance of the hearing by the student, summary disposition of the matter will be indicated in letter form and forwarded to the student with a copy to the superintendent.

If the student is unable to attend the original time and day specified by the administrator for the evidentiary hearing, the matter may be continued only once and in such case, will be reset to be conducted within the next 72 hours, excluding weekends and holidays. Any further request for continuance will result in immediate disposition of the matter with notification in writing sent to the student.

3. Decision

Once the evidentiary hearing has been held, the administrator will summarize the findings in a written report, which will include the decision as to the student's innocence or guilt and recommended discipline, if applicable. This decision will be announced orally at the conclusion of the hearing with a written report to follow, or within three business days of the conclusion of the hearing, by issuance of the written report. The imposition of discipline will commence following announcement of the decision or issuance of the written report, whichever occurs first.

Should the punishment be one of short or long-term removal or dismissal, the administrator will notify the superintendent of the action.

4. Appeal

If all or any portion of the administrator's decision is not agreed to, the student has the right to appeal the decision to the superintendent. An appeal is commenced by letter to the superintendent delivered within 72 hours of the decision rendered by the administrator. The administrator, upon receipt of notice of the appeal, will forward the report of the hearing to the superintendent for decision. The superintendent shall have the authority to sustain, overrule, or modify the division administrator's decision.

If the student desires an appeal to the superintendent, he or she shall be permitted to remain in school unless the circumstances delineated under the "Dismissal" section, above, are met. At the hearing, the division administrator shall first present his/her evidence and be subject to cross-examination by the superintendent. This will be followed by the student's

evidence. The decision of the superintendent shall be final. Such decision shall be communicated orally after the hearing **or** in writing to all parties, within three business days following the decision. An oral decision, when rendered immediately following the hearing, shall be followed by issuance of the superintendent's written decision, which shall be placed in the mail within three (3) business days of announcing the decision.

5. Modification of Corrective Action

The imposition of corrective action is subject to modification upon the recommendation of the administrator at any time prior to the hearing before the superintendent. The discipline imposed by the administrator is based on one or more of the following guidelines:

- A. Seriousness of the offense.
- B Student's disciplinary record during the course of the school year or in prior years.
- C. Any final action by civil authorities. (However, action by authorities, in criminal or civil matters, is not a condition precedent to disciplinary action by the school.)
- D. Cooperation and assistance of student during the disciplinary proceedings.
- E. Other circumstances as the administrator may deem relevant.

6. Readmission

A dismissed student is eligible to be readmitted upon proper application for readmission. However, the administration may consider the student's prior disciplinary and incident record in determining whether to grant a student's request for readmission.

Notification of Policy

Copies of any procedural regulations and the *Adult Student Behavior Code* shall be distributed to all adult students annually, and students are responsible for compliance with the school's behavior and conduct standards. Questions as to the interpretation of any part of the policy should be presented to the appropriate administrator.

Administrative Actions

Administrative actions provided in this policy may be taken by the administrator designated by this policy or the superintendent. An administrator, whether a division administrator superintendent, or other administrator in charge, may appoint a designee to act in his/her place. With the exception of the superintendent, designees must be approved by the superintendent.

Adult Student Behavior Code

The following behaviors at the technology center, while in technology center vehicles or going to or from or attending technology center events will result in disciplinary action, including the possibility of dismissal:

- 1. Arson
- 2. Altering or attempting to alter another individual's food or beverage
- 3. Assault (whether physical or verbal) and/or battery
- 4. Attempting to incite or produce imminent violence directed against another person because of his or her race, color, sex, pregnancy, gender, gender expression or identity, national origin, religion, disability, veteran status, sexual orientation, age, or genetic information by making or transmitting or causing or allowing to be transmitted, any telephonic, computerized or electronic message
- 5. Attempting to incite or produce imminent violence directed against another person because of his or her race, color, sex, pregnancy, gender, gender expression or identity, national origin, religion, disability, veteran status, sexual orientation, age, or genetic information by broadcasting, publishing or distributing or causing or allowing to be broadcast, published or distributed, any message or material
- 6. Cheating
- 7. Conduct that threatens or jeopardizes the safety of others
- 8. Cutting class or sleeping, eating or refusing to work in class
- 9. Disruption of the educational process or operation of the school
- 10. Extortion
- 11. Failure to attend assigned detention, alternative school or other disciplinary assignment, without approval
- 12. Failure to comply with state immunization requirements
- 13. False reports or false calls
- 14. Fighting
- 15. Forgery, fraud or embezzlement
- 16. Gambling
- 17. Gang related activity or actions
- 18. Harassment, intimidation, and bullying, including gestures, written or verbal

- expression, electronic communication and physical acts
- 19. Hazings (whether involving initiations or not) in connection with any school activity, regardless of location
- 20. Immorality
- 21. Inappropriate attire, including violation of dress code
- 22. Inappropriate behavior or gestures
- 23. Indecent exposure
- 24. Intimidation or harassment because race, color, sex, pregnancy, gender, gender expression or identity, national origin, religion, disability, veteran status, sexual orientation, age, or genetic information including but not limited to: (a) assault and battery; (b) damage, destruction, vandalism or defacing any real or personal property; or threatening, by word or act, the acts identified in (a) or (b)
- 25. Obscene language
- 26. Physical or verbal abuse
- 27. Plagiarism
- 28. Possession or use of a caustic substance (unrelated to course work)
- 29. Possessing, distributing or viewing obscene materials, including electronic possession, distribution or viewing (sexting)
- 30. Possession or use, without prior authorization, of a wireless telecommunication device
- 31. Possession, threat or use of a dangerous weapon, including firearms, and related instrumentalities (i.e., bullets, shells, gun powder, pellets, etc.)
- 32. Possession, claimed possession, use, manufacture, distribution, sale, purchase, conspiracy to sell, distribute or possess or being in the chain of sale or distribution, or being under the influence of (a) alcoholic beverages, low-point beer (as defined by Oklahoma law, i.e., 3.2 beer), (b) any mind altering substance, except for medications taken for legitimate medical purposes pursuant to district policy, including but not limited to prescription medications for which the individual does not have a prescription, or medications used outside their intended therapeutic purpose, (c) paint, glue, aerosol sprays, salts, incense and other substances which may be used as an intoxicating substance, or (d) any substance believed or represented to be a prohibited substance, regardless of its actual content.
- 33. Possession, claimed possession, or distribution of illegal and/or drug related paraphernalia

- 34. Profanity
- 35. Purchasing, selling and/or attempting to purchase or sell prescription and non-prescription medicine while at school and school related functions
- 36. Sexual or other harassment of individuals including, but not limited to, students, school employees, volunteers
- 37. Theft
- 38. Threatening behavior, including but not limited to gestures, written, verbal, or physical acts, or, electronic communications
- 39. Truancy
- 40. Use, possession, distribution or selling tobacco or tobacco related products in any form, including but not limited to cigarettes, cigars, loose tobacco, rolling papers, chewing tobacco, snuff, matches, lighters, e-cigarettes, personal vaporizers, and electronic nicotine delivery systems, and any cartridge, container or product designed to be used in conjunction with these delivery systems, regardless of the nicotine content of the product
- 41. Use, possession, or claimed possession of missing or stolen property if property is reasonably suspected to have been taken from a student, a school employee, or the school
- 42. Using racial, religious, ethnic, sexual, gender or disability-related epithets
- 43. Use of the school's technology resources (i.e., computers, electronic mail, internet, and similar resources) in a manner prohibited by policies, in any manner not authorized by school officials, or in violation of law
- 44. Vandalism
- 45. Violation of board of education policies, rules or regulations or violation of school rules and regulations including, but not limited to, disrespect, lingering in restrooms, running in halls, bringing unauthorized items to school, inappropriate or unauthorized use of cellular phones or other electronic media, name calling, destroying or defacing school property
- 46. Vulgarity
- 47. Willful damage to school property
- 48. Willful disobedience of a directive of any school official

Students suspended for a violent offense directed toward an instructor shall not be allowed to return to the instructor's classroom without the instructor's prior approval. Whether an offense is considered a violent offense, requiring an instructor's approval as a condition of return to a particular classroom, shall be based on applicable provisions of the Oklahoma school law regarding student suspension and applicable criminal law distinguishing between violent and nonviolent offenses.

In addition, conduct occurring outside of the normal school day or off school property that has a direct and immediate negative effect on the discipline or educational process or effectiveness of the school, will also result in disciplinary action, which may include removal from school. This includes but is not limited to electronic communication, whether or not such communication originated at school or with school equipment, if the communication is specifically directed at students or school personnel and concerns harassment, intimidation or bullying at school.

School Safety and Bullying Prevention Act (OKLA. STAT. tit. 70, § 24-100.2)

The Oklahoma Legislature established the *School Safety and Bullying Prevention Act* with the express intent of prohibiting bullying in all schools. In addition to the prohibition listed in the student discipline code, above, the board has adopted a separate policy prohibiting bullying and outlining the district's plan to address it.

Dismissal of Students Because of <u>Failure to Meet or Comply with Essential Course Requirements</u>

The technology center's course offerings include those that incorporate requirements essential to successful completion of the course. An example is the clinical hours a part of and necessary to completion of many health care courses. When a student cannot complete essential course requirements the student may be dismissed from a program for a variety of reasons, including but not limited to conduct, behavior, or other inability to meet mandatory parts of the program. Students dismissed for reasons falling within this part of the policy, will have the same rights with regard to removal as adult students who violate the technology center's disciplinary code.

Students Attending the Technology Center by Virtue of a Special Program

In some instances, adult students are participating in programs offered by the technology center as a result of their eligibility established by terms of a federal or state program. In these instances the programs establish eligibility requirements as well as minimum standards which students must meet in order to remain a part of the program and recipient of program benefits. Student participation and dismissal of the student may be governed by the program criteria. Students have no property interest in these programs and, as a result, those who violate expectations related to attendance, participation, and otherwise fail to meet the obligations which accompany participation, may be removed from the program with notice to the student and the program director. Whether to allow the student to return to the program and, if so, under what conditions, will be a joint decision of the designated school representatives and the designees for the federal or state program. The student's dismissal or removal shall include written notice to the program or project director of the student's dismissal and the reasons for dismissal.

NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY Adopted:

SECONDARY STUDENT BEHAVIOR

Discipline Code

The following behaviors at school, while on school vehicles or going to or from or attending school events will result in disciplinary action, which may include in-school placement options or out-of-school suspension:

- 1. Arson
- 2. Altering or attempting to alter another individual's food or beverage
- 3. Assault (whether physical or verbal) and/or battery
- 4. Attempting to incite or produce imminent violence directed against another person because of his or her race, color, sex, pregnancy, gender, gender expression or identity, national origin, religion, disability, veteran status, sexual orientation, age, or genetic information by making or transmitting or causing or allowing to be transmitted, any telephonic, computerized or electronic message
- 5. Attempting to incite or produce imminent violence directed against another person because of his or her race, color, sex, pregnancy, gender, gender expression or identity, national origin, religion, disability, veteran status, sexual orientation, age, or genetic information by broadcasting, publishing or distributing or causing or allowing to be broadcast, published or distributed, any message or material
- 6. Cheating
- 7. Conduct that threatens or jeopardizes the safety of others
- 8. Cutting class or sleeping, eating or refusing to work in class
- 9. Disruption of the educational process or operation of the school
- 10. Extortion
- 11. Failure to attend assigned detention, alternative school or other disciplinary assignment without approval
- 12. Failure to comply with state immunization records
- 13. False reports or false calls
- 14. Fighting

- 15. Forgery, fraud, or embezzlement
- 16. Gambling
- 17. Gang related activity or action
- 18. Harassment, intimidation, and bullying, including gestures, written or verbal expression, electronic communication or physical acts
- 19. Hazings (whether involving initiations or not) in connection with any school activity, regardless of location
- 20. Immorality
- 21. Inappropriate attire, including violation of dress code
- 22. Inappropriate behavior or gestures
- 23. Indecent exposure
- 24. Intimidation or harassment because of race, color, sex, pregnancy, gender, gender expression or identity, national origin, religion, disability, veteran status, sexual orientation, age, or genetic information, including but not limited to: (a) assault and battery; (b) damage, destruction, vandalism or defacing any real or personal property; or threatening, by word or act, the acts identified in (a) or (b)
- 25. Obscene language
- 26. Physical or verbal abuse
- 27. Plagiarism
- 28. Possession or distribution of a caustic substance (unrelated to course work)
- 29. Possessing, distributing or viewing obscene materials, including electronic possession, distribution or viewing (sexting)
- 30. Possession, without prior authorization, of a wireless telecommunication device
- 31. Possession, threat or use of a dangerous weapon and related instrumentalities (i.e., bullets, shells, gun powder, pellets, etc.)
- 32. Possession, claimed possession, use, manufacture, distribution, sale, purchase, conspiracy to sell, distribute or possess or being in the chain of sale or distribution, or being under the influence of (a) alcoholic beverages, low-

¹ Students who are members of JROTC and are participating in an authorized school program may, with prior approval from the campus director, bring an inoperable weapon to school for the sole and exclusive purpose of participating in the program. Students may only possess the inoperable weapon in a manner consistent with the authorization to participate in the program.

point beer (as defined by Oklahoma law, i.e., 3.2 beer), (b) any mind altering substance, except for medications taken for legitimate medical purposes pursuant to district policy, including but not limited to prescription medications for which the individual does not have a prescription, or medications used outside their intended therapeutic purpose, (c) paint, glue, aerosol sprays, salts, incense and other substances which may be used as an intoxicating substance, or (d) any substance believed or represented to be a prohibited substance, regardless of its actual content.

- 33. Possession, claimed possession, or distribution of illegal and/or drug related paraphernalia
- 34. Possession or claimed possession of prescription and/or non-prescription medicine while at school and school related functions without prior administrative approval
- 35. Profanity
- 36. Purchasing, selling and/or attempting to purchase or sell prescription and non-prescription medicine while at school and school related functions
- 37. Sexual or other harassment of individuals including, but not limited to, students, school employees, volunteers
- 38. Theft
- 39. Threatening behavior, including but not limited to gestures, written, verbal, or physical acts, or electronic communications
- 40. Truancy
- 41. Use, possession, claimed possession, distribution, or selling tobacco or tobacco related products in any form, including but not limited to cigarettes, cigars, loose tobacco, rolling papers, chewing tobacco, snuff, matches, lighters, e-cigarettes, personal vaporizers, electronic nicotine delivery systems, and any cartridge, container or product designed to be used in conjunction with these delivery systems, regardless of the nicotine content of the product.
- 42. Use or possession of missing or stolen property if property is reasonably suspected to have been taken from a student, a technology center employee, or the technology center
- 43. Using racial, religious, ethnic, sexual, gender or disability-related epithets
- 44. Use of the school's technology resources (i.e., computers, electronic mail, internet, and similar resources) in a manner prohibited by policies, in any manner not authorized by school officials, or in violation of law
- 45. Vandalism
- 46. Violation of board of education policies, rules or regulations or violation of

school rules and regulations including, but not limited to, disrespect, lingering in restrooms, running in halls, bringing unauthorized items to school, inappropriate or unauthorized use of cellular phones or other electronic media, name calling, destroying or defacing school property

- 47. Vulgarity
- 48. Willful damage to school property
- 49. Willful disobedience of a directive of any school official

In addition, conduct occurring outside of the normal school day or off technology center property that has a direct and immediate negative effect on the discipline or educational process or effectiveness of the school, will also result in disciplinary action, which may include in-school placement options or out-of-school suspension. This includes but is not limited to electronic communication, whether or not such communication originated at school or with technology center equipment, if the communication is specifically directed at students or technology center personnel and concerns harassment, intimidation or bullying at school.

School Safety and Bullying Prevention Act (OKLA. STAT. tit. 70, § 24-100.2)

The Oklahoma Legislature established the *School Safety and Bullying Prevention Act* with the express intent of prohibiting bullying in all schools. In addition to the prohibition listed in the student discipline code, above, the board has adopted a separate policy prohibiting bullying and outlining the technology center's plan to address it.

Sample Disciplinary Options

• Instructor or Administrator Intervention

May include, but is not limited to: warning conference with student, parent conference, referral to counselor, behavioral contract, restriction of privileges, requirement of corrective action by student, changing student's seat or class assignment, involvement of local authorities or agencies, or other appropriate action as required or indicated by the circumstances.

Detention or In-School Intervention

Detention is a correctional measure used when it is deemed appropriate. Students are to report to the appropriate teacher/campus director at the specified time with class work to be studied. Detention may be assigned on a week-day or on a Saturday, as deemed appropriate.

Alternative In-School Placement

Alternative in-school placement is an optional correctional measure that may be used by the administration when deemed appropriate. It involves assignment to a site, designated by the technology center, for a prescribed course of education as determined by school representatives. Any such placement will be made in accordance with applicable special education procedural safeguards.

Alternative Out-of-School Placement

Alternative out-of-school placement is an optional correctional measure specifically authorized in cases when a student has made electronic communications intended to terrify, intimidate, harass, or threaten injury or harm to faculty or students. Any such placement will be made in accordance with applicable special education procedural safeguards.

School Service

School service may be required of students when an administrator believes that it would allow the student to understand the logical consequences of his/her conduct. Examples include, but are not limited to, cleaning after vandalism or littering, helping a teacher after disrupting a class, etc. School service will not be utilized to augment the district's workforce, in ways which are likely to endanger a student, or in a manner which is designed to unduly embarrass a student.

Out of School Student Suspension

Students may be suspended out of school pursuant to the technology center's policy regarding student suspension.

Student Privileges While Under Suspension

Participation in the extracurricular activities of the technology center is a privilege and not a right. Accordingly, when a student's behavior results in a determination by the campus director to impose disciplinary or other correctional measures against a student, the student will not be permitted to participate in any extracurricular activities offered by the technology center during the term of the discipline unless, in the sole judgment of the director, such participation is appropriate given the nature of the offense.

"Extracurricular activities" include, but are not limited to, all technology center sponsored teams, clubs, organizations, ceremonies, student government, etc.

NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY Adopted:

SECONDARY STUDENT SUSPENSIONS (OUT-OF-SCHOOL)

This policy applies only to out-of-school suspensions and, unless otherwise noted, all references to "suspension" in this policy mean out-of-school suspension. References to "parent" in this policy means a student's parent(s) or legal guardian(s).

Behavior or Conduct that May Result in Suspension:

Secondary students may be suspended for:

- 1. violation of a school regulation (which includes but is not limited to any policy, rule, regulation, directive, etc.);
- 2. possession of an intoxicating beverage, low-point beer, as defined by OKLA. STAT. tit. 37, § 163.2, or missing or stolen property if the property is reasonably suspected to have been taken from a student, a school employee, or the school during school activities;
- 3. possession of a dangerous weapon or a controlled dangerous substance while on or within two thousand (2,000) feet of public school property, or at a school event, as defined in the Uniform Controlled Dangerous Substances Act. Possession of a firearm shall result in suspension as provided in the technology center's policy related to firearms;

Students who are suspended under categories 1 or 2 will be provided with an education plan as outlined below. No education plan will be required for students who are suspended under category 3.

Violent Acts Toward School Personnel

Any secondary student found to have assaulted, attempted to cause physical bodily injury, or acted in a manner that could reasonably cause bodily injury to a school employee or person volunteering for the school shall be suspended for the remainder of the current semester and the next consecutive semester. For good cause and considering the totality of the circumstances, the district's superintendent or designee may modify the term of the suspension. Final action as to any such suspension, including its term, remains with the board of education or designated hearing officer, pursuant to a timely appeal.

Students suspended for a violent offense directed toward a classroom teacher shall not be allowed to return to the teacher's classroom without the teacher's prior approval. Whether an offense is considered a violent offense, requiring an affected teacher's approval as a condition of return to a particular classroom, shall be based on applicable provisions of the Oklahoma school law regarding student suspension and applicable Oklahoma criminal law distinguishing between violent and nonviolent offenses.

Technology Center's Obligations Prior to Suspension

Before the technology center recommends suspension, other disciplinary options will be considered, including but not limited to: placement in an alternative school setting, reassignment to another classroom, and detention. The technology center will provide additional procedural safeguards as required by law for students identified as having disabilities under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act/Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act. The student's high school principal will be consulted in all cases.

Pre-Suspension Conference

When a student engages in behavior or conduct that may result in suspension the campus director shall conduct an informal conference with the student.

At the conference the campus director shall read the regulation that the student is charged with having violated and shall discuss the student's conduct. The student shall be asked whether he/she understands the regulation and be given a full opportunity to explain and discuss his/her conduct.

If the campus director concludes that suspension is appropriate, the student shall be advised that he/she is being suspended and the length of the suspension. The campus director shall immediately notify the parent by phone and in writing that the student is being suspended and that other disciplinary options were considered and rejected. The written notice will state which alternative disciplinary options were considered and why they were rejected.

A student may be suspended without a pre-suspension conference <u>only</u> in situations when the campus director reasonably believes that the student's continued presence in the building will constitute an immediate danger to the health or safety of students, school employees, school property, or would be a substantial disruption of the educational process. In such cases, a conference with the student and parent will be scheduled as soon as possible after the student has been removed from the building.

Conferences with Parents

The campus director will seek to hold a conference with the parent as soon as possible after the suspension has been imposed. The parent should be advised of his/her right to a conference with the campus director at the time he/she is verbally notified that a suspension has been imposed. The conference will be held during the regular school hours, Monday through Friday, with consideration given whenever possible to the hours of working parents.

At the conference, the campus director will read the regulation the student is charged with having violated and will briefly outline the student's conduct. The campus director will also explain the reason for rejecting other disciplinary options. The parent should be asked by the campus director if he/she understands the regulation and the charges against the student.

At the conclusion of the conference the campus director shall state whether he/she will terminate or modify the suspension. In all cases the parent will be advised of the right to have the suspension reviewed by the superintendent, board of education, a hearing officer appointed by the board, or the suspension committee as provided by this policy. If the parent is in agreement with the campus director's decision, he/she will be requested to sign a waiver of review.

Individualized Plans

Suspensions in excess of five (5) days shall include an Individualized Plan ("Plan") that shall describe either a home-based school work assignment setting or other appropriate work assignment setting. The Plan shall be prepared by the campus director with the assistance of other school employees.

The Plan shall provide for the core units in which the student is enrolled. Core units shall consist of the minimum English, Mathematics, Science, Social Studies and Art units required by the Oklahoma State Department of Education for high school graduation.

A copy of the Plan shall be provided to the student and parent. The parent shall be responsible for providing a supervised, structured environment monitoring the student's educational progress until the student is readmitted into school. The Plan shall set out the procedure for education and shall also address academic credit for work satisfactorily completed.

Records

The campus director will keep written records of each suspension conference. The records will contain the date of the conference, names of participants, time and duration of the conference, and the basis for rejecting alternative disciplinary options. The campus director shall also maintain records related to the Plan and the student and/or parent's compliance with the Plan.

Suspension Terms

All suspensions will have a definite start and end date. The term of a suspension may be reduced if a student performs a specified remedial act if those conditions are agreed to at the time of the suspension. Suspension lengths will be as consistent as possible between students considering the nature of the conduct and the previous disciplinary history of the student.

Long-term suspensions are those suspensions in excess of ten (10) school days. Suspensions will not extend beyond the current school semester and succeeding semester, except in the case of possession of a firearm, in which case a suspension shall be for a period of not less than one (1) calendar year. Suspensions involving firearms are governed by the school district's Gun-Free Schools Student Suspension policy.

Short-term suspensions are those suspensions of ten (10) or fewer school days.

Long-Term Suspension Appeals

A parent/student may appeal the suspension to the superintendent and board of education or a hearing officer appointed by the board. The campus director shall inform the parent/student of the right to appeal the suspension and the method for appealing. At the parent/student's option the appeal may be directly to the board or the board's appointed hearing officer.

A written appeal must be received by the superintendent within five (5) calendar days after the parent/student receives the campus director's decision. If the superintendent does not receive a written appeal within five (5) calendar days of the campus director's decision, the campus director's suspension decision is final.

Appeals to the Superintendent or Designee ("Superintendent")

If the superintendent receives a timely written appeal request, the superintendent will hold a conference with the parent or guardian as soon as possible. The conference will be held during regular school hours, Monday through Friday, with consideration given to the hours of working parents whenever possible.

At the conference, the superintendent will read the regulation the student is charged with having violated and will briefly outline the student's conduct. The parent will be asked if he/she understands the regulation and the charges against the student. The student/parent will be given an opportunity to provide his/her version of events.

At the conclusion of the conference the superintendent will state whether he/she shall terminate or modify the suspension. In all cases the parent shall be advised of the right to have the suspension reviewed by the board of education or a board-appointed hearing officer. If the parent is in agreement with the superintendent's decision, he/she shall be requested to sign a waiver of review by the board.

Appeals to the Board of Education or Designated Hearing Officer

An appeal must be presented by letter to the superintendent within five (5) calendar days after the parent/student receives the superintendent's decision. If the superintendent does not receive a written appeal within five (5) calendar days of the superintendent's decision, the superintendent's suspension decision is final.

If the board receives a timely written appeal request, the board or an appointed hearing officer will hear the appeal as soon as possible. This decision is final and nonappealable.

The parent/student will be notified in writing of the date, time and place of the hearing and will have the right to choose an "open" or "closed" hearing. Reasonable efforts will be made to accommodate the work schedule of parents. The following procedures will be followed:

- 1. The board president or the appointed hearing officer should:
 - a. Announce that the next agenda item is a suspension review hearing.
 - b. Ask whether the parent/student wants the hearing to be open to the public or in executive session. The offer of an open hearing and the response is to be made a part of the minutes of the meeting. If the parent/student requests a closed hearing, a motion to go into executive session per their request should be made and voted on.

- 2. The board president or hearing officer should advise the parent/student:
 - a. That they are entitled to legal counsel, if they desire it.
 - b. That the administration will present its witnesses first and that after each witness the parent or their legal counsel will be given an opportunity to cross-examine.
 - c. That the parent/student will be given an opportunity to call any relevant witnesses and present any relevant evidence, subject to cross-examination by the administration's legal counsel.
 - d. That the board or its hearing officer will consider the evidence and documents and reach a decision that will be recorded by vote in open session.
 - e. That the parent/student may ask any questions about the procedure.
- 3. Administration may call witnesses and present documents subject to cross-examination.
- 4. Parent/student may call any witnesses and present documents subject to cross-examination.
- 5. After each witness is presented board members or the hearing officer may ask the witness questions.
- 6. Parent/student's closing statement.
- 7. Administration's closing statement.
- 8. Deliberate in private. (If the hearing is not in executive session, the board or its hearing officer may deliberate in executive session only with permission of the parent/student.)
- 9. Return to open session and vote. After adopting a motion making certain findings of fact the board must make a motion to: (1) affirm the suspension; (2) modify the suspension (increase or decrease severity of the suspension); or (3) revoke the suspension. If the hearing is before a hearing officer, no motions will be required as a part of the hearing process; otherwise, the hearing officer will have the same obligations as the board when rendering a decision.

Attendance at School Pending Appeal Hearing

Pending an appeal of the student suspension, the student will have the right to attend school under such "in-house" restrictions as the campus director deems proper, except that at the discretion of the campus director, the student may be prohibited from attending school pending any appeal hearing if in the judgment of the campus director the student's continued presence in the building will constitute an

immediate danger to the health or safety of students, school employees, school property, or would be a substantial disruption of the educational process.

Short-Term Suspension Appeals

A parent or student may appeal the suspension decision to a suspension review committee established by the superintendent. The campus director shall inform the parent/student of the right to appeal the suspension and the method for appealing.

An appeal must be presented by letter to the campus director within five (5) calendar days after the parent/student receives the campus director's decision. If the campus director does not receive a written appeal within five (5) calendar days of the decision, the campus director's suspension decision is final.

Upon receipt of the request, the campus director shall confirm that the student's suspension falls within the category of suspensions to which an appeal to the committee is authorized. If the campus director determines that the suspension is a long-term suspension, or the original short-term suspension is extended beyond ten (10) school days prior to the hearing, the procedures applicable to long-term suspensions must be followed and the student must be given the opportunity to appeal any adverse decision to the board of education.

Hearing the Appeal

- 1. The superintendent shall appoint a review committee consisting of not less than three certified administrators and/or teachers, and shall designate a chairperson for the committee. No administrator or teacher is eligible to serve on the committee who was a witness to the student's conduct, nor is any teacher eligible to serve who has the student in his/her class for the current school term.
- 2. The superintendent shall schedule the committee hearing as soon as possible during regular school hours, Monday through Friday. Reasonable consideration shall be given to accommodate the work schedules of the parent whenever possible. The parent/student will be notified in writing of the date, time and place of the hearing. The campus director shall attend the hearing. Either party choosing to have legal counsel at the hearing shall give the other party twenty-four (24) hours advance notice. The failure to give such notice will preclude the party's right to have counsel attend the hearing.
- 3. The committee will conduct a full investigation of the student's suspension in an informal manner. The campus director will briefly outline the student's conduct, read the regulation that the student's conduct violated, and present any evidence and witnesses that support the suspension decision. The parent/student will be asked by the committee if they understand the regulation and charges against the student. The parent/student will then briefly explain the student's conduct, and present any evidence and witnesses that support the student's position.
- 4. At the conclusion of the presentation of the evidence, the committee shall retire to render a decision by a majority vote as to the guilt or innocence of the student. The committee shall also determine the reasonableness of the term of the suspension. The committee's decision shall be confirmed in

writing and a copy will be mailed to the parent, the campus director and the superintendent.

5. The decision of the committee shall be final and nonappealable.

Student Privileges While Under Suspension

Participation in school extracurricular activities is a privilege and not a right. Accordingly, students who are suspended are <u>immediately</u> ineligible to participate in extracurricular activities, notwithstanding the filing of an appeal. "Extracurricular activities" include, but are not limited to, all school sponsored teams, clubs, organizations, ceremonies, student government, and all other school sponsored activities and organizations.

Reference: OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 24-101.3

NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY Adopted:

DISCIPLINARY REMOVAL OF SECONDARY STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

Definitions

For purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply:

"Child with a disability" includes students who have been identified as having a disability or for whom an initial evaluation has been sought under the Individuals with Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, or Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

"Controlled substance" means a drug or other substance identified under schedules I, II, III, IV or V in section 202(c) of the Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. § 812(c).

"Illegal drug" means a controlled substance, but does not include a controlled substance that is legally possessed or used under the supervision of a licensed health care professional or that is legally possessed or used under any other authority under the Controlled Substances Act or under any other provision of federal law.

"School day" means any day, including a partial day, that students are in attendance at the technology center for instructional purposes.

"Serious bodily injury" means bodily injury that involves -

- 1. a substantial risk of death;
- 2. extreme physical pain;
- 3. protracted and obvious disfigurement; or
- 4. protracted loss or impairment of the function of a bodily member, organ or mental faculty.

"Weapon" means a dangerous weapon as defined by 18 U.S.C. § 930(g)(2), specifically, a weapon, device, instrument, material or substance, animate or inanimate, that is used for, or is readily capable of, causing death or serious bodily injury, except that such term does not include a pocket knife with a blade of less than $2\frac{1}{2}$ inches in length.

Case-By-Case Determination

Technology center personnel must consider any unique circumstances on a case-by-case basis when determining whether a change of placement is appropriate for a student with a disability who violates the code of student conduct.

Short-Term Disciplinary Removal

District personnel may remove a student with a disability who violates the code of student conduct from the student's current placement to an appropriate interim alternative educational setting, another setting or suspension, for not more than ten (10) consecutive school days and for additional removals of not more than ten (10) consecutive school days in the same school year for separate incidents of misconduct, as long as those additional removals do not constitute a change of placement.

A change of placement occurs if:

- 1. the removal is for more than ten (10) consecutive school days; or
- 2. the student has been subjected to a series of removals that are ten (10) days or less during the same school year that constitute a pattern.

School personnel determine whether a pattern exists by considering the following factors:

- the series of removals total more than ten (10) school days in a school year;
- the student's behavior is substantially similar to the student's behavior in previous incidents that resulted in the series of removals; and
- such additional factors as the length of each removal, the total amount of time the student has been removed and the proximity of the removals to one another.

However, in an effort to promote uniformity in the decision-making process, the board of education has determined that it is in the district's best interest that it not require school personnel to weigh these factors to determine the existence of a pattern in each instance. Instead, when the student's short-term removals exceed ten (10) school days over the course of the school year, the district will follow the process identified in this policy for implementing a long-term removal.

In school alternative placements for more than ten (10) consecutive school days or that may constitute a pattern of exclusion may be a change of placement if the student does not receive education services required under the student's IEP or Section 504 / Title II Plan.

Educational Services During a Short-Term Disciplinary Removal

The technology center will provide a student with a disability the same level of services it provides students without disabilities during removals for ten (10) school days or less during the school year.

After a student with a disability has been removed from his or her current placement for ten (10) school days in the same school year, if a subsequent removal is imposed for not more than ten (10) consecutive school days and is not a change of placement, technology center personnel, in consultation with the student's special education teacher and the sending school district, will determine the extent to which services are needed, so as to enable the student to continue to appropriately progress in the general curriculum, although in another setting, and to appropriately advance toward meeting the goals set out in the student's IEP or Section 504 / Title II Plan.

Notification

On the date on which the decision is made to make a disciplinary removal that constitutes a change of placement of a student with a disability because of a violation of the district's code of student conduct, technology center personnel will notify the sending school district as well as the minor student's parents of the decision and ensure that the sending school provides the parents of students who are eligible for special education and related services under the IDEA with a copy of the Parents Rights in Special Education: Notice of Procedural Safeguards form. Personnel will provide the parents of students who are eligible for special education and related services only under Section 504/Title II with a copy of the district's Section 504 Information and Procedural Safeguards form.

Special Circumstances

Technology center personnel may also remove a student to an interim alternative educational setting for not more than 45 school days without regard to whether the behavior is determined to be a manifestation of the student's disability, if the student:

- 1. carries or possesses a weapon at school, on school premises, or to or at a school function;
- 2. knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled substance at school, on school premises or at a school function; or
- 3. has inflicted serious bodily injury upon another person while at school, on school premises or at a school function.

Making a Manifestation Determination

The technology center will notify the sending school of any incidents involving the need to make a manifestation determination. These determinations will be made with full notice to and cooperation with the sending school. Except for removals that will be for not more than ten (10) consecutive school days and will not constitute a change of placement, within ten (10) school days of any decision to change the placement of a student with a disability because of a violation of the technology center's code of student conduct, the student's sending school's IEP or Section 504 / Title II team will meet to review all relevant information in the student's file, including the student's IEP or Section 504 / Title II Plan, any teacher/instructor observations psychological evaluation date related to the student's current behavior, and any relevant information provided by the sending school and parents to determine:

- 1. if the conduct in question was caused by, or had a direct and substantial relationship to, the student's disability; or
- 2. if the conduct in question was the direct result of an inappropriate placement or the technology center's failure to implement the IEP or Section 504 / Title II Plan.

The conduct will be determined to be a manifestation of the student's disability if the student's IEP or Section 504 / Title II team determines that a condition in either (a) or (b) of this paragraph was met.

If the student's IEP or Section 504 / Title II team determines that the conduct in question was the direct result of the technology center's failure to implement the IEP or 504 Plan, immediate steps will be taken to remedy those deficiencies.

Determination that Behavior Is a Manifestation of the Student's Disability

If the IEP team determines that the conduct was a manifestation of the student's disability, the team will either:

- conduct a functional behavior assessment, unless the technology center had conducted a functional behavior assessment before the behavior that resulted in the change of placement occurred and further functional behavior assessment is deemed unnecessary, and implement a behavior intervention plan for the student; or
- 2. if a behavior intervention plan already has been developed, review the behavior intervention plan and modify it, as necessary, to address the behavior.

If the Section 504 / Title II team determines that the conduct <u>was</u> a manifestation of the child's disability, the team will determine what, if any, modifications to the student's educational placement are necessary, including conducting a functional behavior assessment and developing or revising a behavior intervention plan (if appropriate).

A parent or guardian who disagrees with the manifestation determination may file a complaint requesting an impartial due process hearing.

Except as provided in this policy, the IEP or Section 504 / Title II team will return the student to the placement from which the student was removed, unless the parent, sending school and the technology center agree to a change of placement as part of the modification of the behavior intervention plan.

Determination that Behavior Is Not a Manifestation of the Student's Disability

If the behavior that gave rise to the violation of the technology center's code of student conduct is determined <u>not</u> to be a manifestation of the student's disability, then school personnel may apply the relevant disciplinary procedures to students with disabilities in the same manner and for the same duration as the procedures would be applied to students without disabilities.

A parent or guardian of a minor student who disagrees with the manifestation determination may file a complaint requesting an impartial due process hearing.

Educational Services During a Long-Term Disciplinary Removal

During a long-term disciplinary removal, a student eligible for special education and related services under the IDEA will:

1. continue to receive educational services so as to enable the student to continue to appropriately progress in the sending school's general education

- curriculum, although in another setting, and to appropriately advance toward achieving the goals set out in the student's IEP; and
- 2. receive, as appropriate through the sending school, a functional behavior assessment and behavior intervention services and modifications that are designed to address the behavior violation so that it does not recur.

The student's IEP team will determine appropriate services and the location in which services will be provided. These services may be provided in an interim alternative educational setting determined by the IEP team.

During a long-term disciplinary removal, a student eligible for special education and related services only under Section 504/Title II will receive educational services to the same extent that a student without disabilities would receive educational services during a disciplinary removal for the same offense. In some instances a long=term disciplinary removal may effectively remove the student from the technology center and may limit or eliminate the student's return to the technology center.

Appeal to Hearing Officer Under the IDEA

The parent of a student eligible for special education and related services under the IDEA who disagrees with any decision regarding placement or the manifestation determination under this policy, or the technology center, if school personnel believe that maintaining the current placement of the student is substantially likely to result in injury to the student or others, may appeal the decision by filing a due process hearing complaint seeking an expedited hearing.

In making the determination, the technology center acknowledges that the hearing officer may:

- return the student with a disability to the placement from which the student was removed if the hearing officer determines that the removal was a violation of the applicable provisions of the IDEA or that the student's behavior was a manifestation of the student's disability; or
- 2. order a change of placement of the student to an appropriate interim alternative educational setting for not more than 45 school days if the hearing officer determines that maintaining the current placement of the student is substantially likely to result in injury to the student or to others.

These procedures may be repeated, if the sending school or technology center believes that returning the student to the original placement is substantially likely to result in injury to the student or to others.

When an appeal has been requested by either the parent, sending school or the technology center, the student will remain in the interim alternative educational setting pending the decision of the hearing officer or until the expiration of the time period set for the placement, whichever occurs first, unless the parent, sending school and the technology center agree otherwise.

The sending school or technology center may also seek a court order to remove a student with a disability from the technology center or change the student's current educational

placement if technology center personnel believe that maintaining the current placement of the student is substantially likely to result in injury to the student or to others.

Providing Records to Disciplinary Decisionmaker

If the technology center initiates disciplinary procedures that it concludes would constitute a change of placement for a student with a disability, school personnel will ensure that the student's special education and disciplinary records are provided for consideration to the sending school personnel making the final determination regarding the disciplinary action.

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER	
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

GUN-FREE SCHOOLS - SECONDARY STUDENT SUSPENSION

Any student who is determined to have:

- brought a weapon to a school under the jurisdiction of the district; or
- possessed a weapon within two thousand (2,000) feet of public school property; or
- possessed a weapon at a school event

shall be suspended out of school for a period of not less than one calendar year. This policy does not apply to students who are members of the JROTC and who possess or bring an inoperable weapon to school for participation in a school program, provided the student obtained prior permission from the campus director, the weapon remains inoperable while at school and the weapon is used consistent with the permission granted.

Any out-of-school suspension imposed under this policy may be modified for any student on a case-by-case basis by the chief administrative officer of the technology center.

For the purposes of this policy, the following definitions shall control:

- The term "weapon" means a firearm as such term is defined in Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States Code.
- The term "chief administrative officer" means the superintendent or the board of education.
- The term "determined to have brought a weapon to a school under the jurisdiction of the district" means any student being in possession or control of a weapon on property owned, leased or rented by the technology center, including, but not limited to, school buildings, parking lots and motor vehicles and any student who is in possession or control of a weapon at any technology center sponsored function regardless of whether such function is conducted on technology center property.

Enforcement of this policy shall be consistent with state and federal laws dealing with discipline of students with disabilities.

Students who violate this policy will be referred to the appropriate criminal justice or juvenile delinquency system. Any firearm seized from a student by any technology center employee shall immediately be delivered to a law enforcement authority for disposition pursuant to applicable law.

Any out-of-school suspension initiated pursuant to this policy shall be subject to the procedural safeguards set forth in the technology center's policy for the out-of-school

suspension of students.

Consistent with Oklahoma law, for an out-of-school suspension under this policy, no education plan shall be implemented during the term of the suspension. This policy does not apply to student suspensions for non-weapon violations.

Reference: OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 24-101.3

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER	
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

STUDENT BULLYING

Statement of Legislative Mandate and Purpose

This policy is a result of the legislative mandate and public policy embodied in the School Safety and Bullying Prevention Act, 70 OKLA. STAT. § 24-100.2 et seq. ("Act"). The technology center intends to comply with the mandates of the Act and expects students to refrain from bullying. Bullying is expressly forbidden and students who bully are subject to disciplinary consequences as outlined in the technology center's policy on student behavior. Bullies may also be provided with assistance to end their unacceptable behavior, and targets of bullies may be provided with assistance to overcome the negative effects of bullying.

Definition of Terms

A. Statutory definition of terms:

"Bully" means any pattern of harassment, intimidation, threatening behavior, physical acts, verbal or electronic communication directed toward a student or group of students that results in or is reasonably perceived as being done with the intent to cause negative educational or physical results for the targeted individual or group and is communicated in such a way as to disrupt or interfere with the school's educational mission or the education of any student.

"Threatening behavior" means any pattern of behavior or isolated action, whether or not it is directed at another person, that a reasonable person would believe indicates potential for future harm to students, school personnel, or school property.

"Electronic communication" means the communication of any written, verbal, pictorial information or video content by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, a mobile or cellular telephone or other wireless telecommunication device, or a computer.

Note: Bullying by electronic communication is prohibited whether or not such communication originated at school, or with school equipment, if the communication is specifically directed at students or school personnel and concerns bullying at school.

"At school" means on technology center grounds, in technology center vehicles, at technology center sponsored activities, or at technology center sanctioned events.

B. The "Reasonable Person" Standard

In determining what a "reasonable person" should recognize as bullying, staff will consider the point of view of the intended target, including any characteristics unique to the intended target. Staff may also consider the discipline history and physical characteristics of the alleged bully.

C. Types of Bullying

"Physical Bullying" includes harm or threatened harm to another's body or property, including but not limited to threats, tripping, hitting, pushing, pinching, pulling hair, kicking, biting, starting fights, daring others to fight, stealing or destroying property, extortion, assaults with a weapon, other violent acts, and homicide.

"Emotional Bullying" includes the intentional infliction of harm to another's selfesteem, including but not limited to insulting or profane remarks or gestures, or harassing and frightening statements.

"Social Bullying" includes harm to another's group acceptance, including but not limited to gossiping; spreading negative rumors to cause a targeted person to be socially excluded, ridiculed, or otherwise lose status; acts designed to publicly embarrass a targeted person, damage the target's current relationships, or deprive the target of self-confidence or the respect of peers.

"Sexual Bullying" includes harm of a sexual nature, including but not limited to making unwelcome sexual comments or gestures to or about the targeted person; creating or distributing vulgar, profane or lewd words or images about the target; committing a sexual act at school, including touching private parts of the target's body; engaging in off-campus dating violence that adversely affects the target's education opportunities; making threatening sexual statements directed at or about the target; or gossiping about the target's sexuality or sex life. Such conduct may also constitute sexual harassment which is prohibited by the technology center.

Understanding and Preventing Bullying

A full copy of this policy will be posted on the technology center's website and included in all handbooks. Parents, guardians, community members, and volunteers will be notified of the availability of this policy through the technology center's annual written notice of the availability of the anti-bullying policy. Written notice of the policy will also be posted at various places in all campuses.

Students and staff will be periodically reminded throughout the year of the availability of this policy, the technology center's commitment to preventing bullying, and help available for those affected by bullying. Anti-bullying programs will be incorporated into the technology center's other violence prevention efforts.

All staff will receive annual training regarding preventing, identifying, reporting, and managing bullying. The technology center's bullying coordinator and individuals designated as campus investigators will receive additional training regarding appropriate consequences and remedial action for bullies, helping targets of bullies, and the technology center's strategy for counseling and referral for those affected by bullying.

Students will receive annual education regarding behavioral expectations, understanding bullying and its negative effects, disciplinary consequences for infractions, reporting methods, and consequences for those who knowingly make false reports. Parents and guardians of minors may participate in a parent education component.

Student Reporting

Students are encouraged to inform school personnel if they are the target of or a witness to bullying. To make a report, students should notify a teacher, counselor, or campus administrator. The employee will give the student an official report form, and will help the student complete the form, if needed.

Students may make an anonymous report of bullying, and such report will be investigated as thoroughly as possible. However, it is often difficult to fully investigate claims which are made anonymously and disciplinary action cannot be taken against a bully solely on the basis of an anonymous report.

Staff Reporting

Staff members will encourage students to report bullying. All employees are required to report acts of bullying to the campus director on an official report form. Any staff member who witnesses, hears about, or suspects bullying is required to submit a report.

Bullying Investigators

Each campus will have a designated individual and an alternate to investigate bullying reports. These individuals will be identified in the site's student and staff handbooks, on the technology center's website, and in the bullying prevention education provided annually to students and staff. The technology center's anti-bullying program is coordinated at the district level by its bullying coordinator, the superintendent of schools.

Investigating Bullying Reports

For any alleged incidents of bullying reported to technology center officials, the designated official will investigate the alleged incident(s) and determine (i) whether bullying occurred, (ii) the severity of the incident(s), (iii) the potential for future violence, and (iv) the reason for the actual or perceived bullying.

In conducting an investigation, the designated official shall interview relevant students and staff and review any documentation of the alleged incident(s). Technology center officials may also work with outside professionals, such as local law enforcement, as deemed appropriate by the investigating official. In the event the investigator believes a criminal act may have been committed or there is a likelihood of violence, the investigator will immediately call local law enforcement and the superintendent.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the designated employee will document the steps taken to review the matter, the conclusions reached and any additional action taken, if applicable. Further, the investigator will notify the district's bullying coordinator that an investigation has occurred and the results of the investigation. In the event the investigation reveals that bullying occurred, the technology center's bullying coordinator will refer the student who committed the act of bullying to a delinquency prevention and diversion program through the Office of Juvenile Affairs.

Upon completion of an investigation, the campus director may recommend that available community mental health care or substance abuse options be provided to a student, if appropriate. The campus director may provide a student with information about the types of support services available to the student bully, target, and any other students affected by

the prohibited behavior. These resources will be provided to any individual who requests such assistance or will be provided if a technology center official believes the resource might be of assistance to the student/family. The technology center is not responsible for paying for these services. No technology center employee is expected to evaluate the appropriateness or the quality of the resource provided, nor is any employee required to provide an exhaustive list of resources available. All technology center employees will act in good faith.

The technology center may request the disclosure of information concerning students who have received substance abuse or mental health care (pursuant to the previous paragraph) if that information indicates an explicit threat to the safety of students or school personnel, provided the disclosure of the information does not violate the requirements and provisions of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, OKLA. STAT. tit. 12 § 1376, OKLA. STAT. tit. 59 §1376 of the Oklahoma Statutes, or any other state or federal laws regarding the disclosure of confidential information. The technology center may request the disclosure of information when it is believed that the student may have posed a danger to him/herself and having such information will allow technology center officials to determine if it is safe for the student to return to the regular classroom or if alternative education arrangements are needed.

Parental Notification for Minor Students

The assigned investigator will notify the parents (minor students only) of a target within one (1) school day that a bullying report has been received. Within one (1) school day of the conclusion of the investigation, the investigator will provide the parents (minor students only) of a target with the results of the investigation and any community resources deemed appropriate to the situation.

If the report of bullying is substantiated, within one (1) school day of the conclusion of the investigation, the investigator will contact the parents (minor students only) of the bully to discuss disciplinary action and any community resources deemed appropriate to the situation.

The timelines in this parental notification section may be reasonably extended if individual circumstances warrant such an extension.

Parental Responsibilities

All parents/guardians of minor students will be informed in writing of the technology center's program to stop bullying and will be given a copy of this policy upon request. An administrative response to a reported act of bullying may involve certain actions to be taken by parents of minor students. Parents of minor students will be informed of the program and the means for students to report bullying acts toward them or other students. They will also be told that to help prevent bullying at school they should encourage their children to:

- Report bullying when it occurs;
- Take advantage of opportunities to talk to their children about bullying;
- Inform the administration immediately if they think their child is being bullied or is bullying other students;

- Watch for symptoms that their child may be a target of bullying and report those symptoms; and
- Cooperate fully with technology center personnel in identifying and resolving incidents.

Monitoring and Compliance

In order to assist the State Department of Education with compliance efforts pursuant to the School Safety and Bullying Prevention Act, 70 OKLA. STAT. § 24-100.2 et seq., the technology center will identify a Bullying Coordinator who will serve as the contact responsible for providing information to the State Board of Education. The Bullying Coordinator shall maintain updated contact information on file with the State Department of Education and the technology center will notify the State Department of Education within fifteen (15) days of the appointment of a new Bullying Coordinator.

A copy of this policy will be submitted to the State Department of Education by December 10th of each school year as part of the technology center's Annual Performance Report.

Reference: OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 24-100.2

NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY Adopted:

HAZING

Hazing constitutes unethical and unacceptable conduct that will not be tolerated at the technology center. To that end, the technology center adopts the following policy prohibiting hazing.

- 1. "Hazing" means any activity which recklessly or intentionally endangers the physical or mental health or safety of a student, required as a condition of membership in an organization, regardless of willing participation, including but not limited to physical brutality such as whipping, beating, branding, forced calisthenics, exposure to the elements, forced consumption of food, alcohol, drugs, or other substances, and activities which would induce extreme mental stress such as prolonged sleep deprivation, prolonged isolation, and conduct which could cause extreme embarrassment or humiliation.
- 2. Endangering the physical health shall include, but not be limited to, any brutality of a physical nature, such as whipping, beating, branding, forced calisthenics, exposure to the elements, forced consumption of any food, alcoholic beverage, low-point beer, drug, controlled dangerous substance, or other substance, or any other forced physical activity which could adversely affect the physical health or safety of the individual.
- 3. Endangering the mental health shall include, but not be limited to, any activity except those authorized by law, which would subject the individual to extreme mental stress, such as prolonged sleep deprivation, forced prolonged exclusion from social contact, forced conduct which could adversely affect the mental health or dignity of the individual.
- 4. No organization having student members which is sponsored by the technology center or which is permitted to hold meetings or other events on technology center property (a "Student Organization") and no student member of a Student Organization shall engage or participate in or directly or indirectly condition membership on participation in or submission to a hazing activity.
- 5. Students violating these prohibitions shall not be permitted to participate in any extra-curricular activity sponsored by the technology center, shall be subject to disciplinary measures which may include suspension or removal, and shall, when appropriate, be referred to local law enforcement authorities for prosecution.
- 6. Student Organizations which violate these prohibitions shall forfeit all rights, privileges, and recognition from the technology center for a minimum of one (1) year, and shall be referred to local law enforcement authorities for prosecution.
- 7. Hazing will be dealt with as outlined in the Code of Student Conduct. Technology center employees who are linked to hazing shall be subject to discipline including dismissal or non-renewal.

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER	
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

STUDENT POSSESSION OF DANGEROUS WEAPONS

In order to provide a safe environment for the students and staff of the technology center, the board of education adopts this policy prohibiting the possession and/or use of dangerous weapons, replicas or facsimiles of dangerous weapons and items or instrumentalities which are used to threaten harm or are used to harm any person.

Dangerous weapons, including but not limited to firearms, are a threat to the safety of the students and staff of the technology center. In addition, possession of dangerous weapons, or replicas or facsimiles of dangerous weapons, disrupts the educational process and interferes with the normal operation of the technology center.

For the foregoing reasons and except as specifically provided below, possession by any student of a dangerous weapon, as that term is defined in this policy, or a replica or facsimile of a dangerous weapon, while on technology center property, at a technology center-sponsored activity, or on a technology center bus or vehicle, is prohibited. Further, use of any item or instrumentality by a student to threaten harm to any person or which is used to harm any person, while on technology center property, at a technology center sponsored activity, or on a technology center bus or vehicle, is prohibited.

For purposes of this policy, "possession of a dangerous weapon" includes, **BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO**, any person having a dangerous weapon: (1) on his or her person; (2) in his or her locker; (3) in his or her vehicle; (4) held by another person for his or her benefit; or (5) at any place on technology center property, a technology center bus or vehicle, or at a technology center activity.

A dangerous weapon includes, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, a pistol, revolver, rifle, shotgun, air gun or spring gun, B-B gun, stun gun, hand grenades, fireworks, slingshot, bludgeon, blackjack, brass knuckles or artificial knuckles of any kind, nun-chucks, dagger, bowie knife, dirk knife, butterfly knife, any knife, regardless of the length or sharpness of the blade, any knife the blade of which can be opened by a flick of a button or pressure on the handle, any pocketknife, regardless of the length or sharpness of the blade, any pen knife, "credit card" knife, razor, dart, ice pick, explosive smoke bomb, incendiary device, sword cane, hand chains, firearm shells or bullets, garrottes, choking devices, mace, pepper spray, and any item whose principal purpose is for use as a weapon, whether offensive or defensive, and any replica or facsimiles of any of the foregoing items, or any item or instrumentality which is used to threaten harm or is used to harm any person or any chemical, material or substance which can cause an irritation to or reacts with human tissue, or any chemical, material or substance used, given, applied to or administered to another person without that person's consent. THE FOREGOING LIST OF "DANGEROUS WEAPONS" IS DESCRIPTIVE AND BY WAY OF EXAMPLE ONLY AND IS NOT TO BE CONSIDERED AN EXCLUSIVE OR LIMITING LIST OF DANGEROUS WEAPONS. IT WILL NOT BE A DEFENSE TO ANY DISCIPLINARY ACTION UNDER THIS POLICY THAT THE STUDENT POSSESSING THE DANGEROUS WEAPON DID NOT KNOW THAT IT IS A DANGEROUS WEAPON, BUT SUCH CLAIM OF A LACK OF KNOWLEDGE MAY BE CONSIDERED IN MITIGATION OF ANY DISCIPLINARY PENALTY.

Any student in possession of a dangerous weapon, or replica or facsimile of a dangerous weapon, in violation of this policy or who uses any item or instrumentality to threaten harm to any person or is used to harm any person may be placed under emergency suspension from technology center, pending an investigation of the incident by the appropriate technology center or legal authorities. Students who violate this policy may be suspended from technology center, barred from technology center property and all technology center activities for any period of time up to the maximum period authorized by law. Additionally, appropriate technology center staff members may seek to file criminal charges against the student.

If a teacher or other technology center employee has a reasonable suspicion to believe that a student is in possession of a dangerous weapon, or a replica or facsimile of a dangerous weapon, the teacher or employee shall immediately investigate the matter and shall confiscate any such weapon found if this can be accomplished without placing any students or staff in jeopardy, and shall immediately notify the superintendent or the superintendent's designee. If the teacher or employee does not believe that the weapon can be confiscated safely, the teacher or employee shall immediately notify the superintendent or the superintendent's designee of the situation.

If the superintendent or his/her designee learns that a student is believed to be in possession of a dangerous weapon or replica or facsimile thereof, the superintendent or designee shall observe the following procedure:

- 1. Immediately investigate the matter and contact the police or campus security, if appropriate.
- 2. If not already confiscated by an employee of the technology center and if it can be accomplished without risk of injury, the superintendent or designee should take possession of the dangerous weapon or replica or facsimile.
- 3. Notify the superintendent or designee.
- 4. Notify the student's parents.
- 5. Cooperate fully with the police.
- 6. Transfer confiscated weapon to the police department, if feasible.

A student who has been suspended from a K-12 school or another technology center because of the possession of a dangerous weapon, or replica or facsimile of a dangerous weapon, shall not be accepted as a transfer student into the technology center.

An exception to this policy may be granted for students participating in an authorized curricular or extracurricular activity or team involving the use or demonstration of a dangerous weapon, or replica or facsimile of a dangerous weapon. For this exception, prior written approval by the superintendent is required. Students who participate in JROTC may also be granted an exception to bring an inoperable weapon onto campus for the limited purpose of participating in a school program. The campus director must approve this exception in advance, the weapon must remain inoperable at all times while on campus, and the weapon must not be used in a manner which is inconsistent with the permission granted.

A student's inadvertent or unintentional possession of a dangerous weapon or replica or facsimile thereof on technology center property, a technology center bus or vehicle, or at a technology center activity is no defense or excuse to compliance to this policy, but may be considered in determining the length or severity of any punishment for violation of this policy.

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing provisions, rights of due process for all students and rights of disabled students must be observed in accordance with applicable law and technology center board policies.

Adult Students and Handguns on School Campus

HB 1652 amended OKLA. STAT. tit. 21 § 1277 by designating the limited areas in which concealed handguns can be located on a technology center campus. Adult students may not carry a gun into any technology center school facility (including offices, common areas, or structures of whatever type or kind). Likewise, it is unlawful for any adult student to carry a handgun onto the campus of a K-12 school whether or not the adult student is engaged in an activity related to the technology center in which the student is enrolled. Students found in possession or control of a handgun in violation of school policies and applicable state or federal laws will suffer the most severe disciplinary consequences available, including removal from school, and referral of unlawful handgun possession or storage to authorities for criminal prosecution. The only area adult students, who have a valid handgun license issued pursuant to the provisions of the Oklahoma Self-Defense Act, may have a handgun on a technology center campus is in a parking lot of the school campus, provided the handgun is carried or stored as required by law.

Reference: OKLA. STAT. tit. 21 § 1272

NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY Adopted:

STUDENTS, DRUGS, AND ALCOHOL

- 1. Illegal and Illicit Drugs and Alcohol
 - A. Use of illicit drugs and unlawful possession and use of alcohol is wrong and harmful, resulting in poor academic performance, poor social interactions, and jeopardy to future job prospects.
 - B. Students are prohibited from using, being under the influence of, possessing, furnishing, distributing, selling, conspiring to sell or possess or being in the chain of sale or distribution of alcoholic beverages, non-intoxicating alcoholic beverages (as defined by Oklahoma law, i.e., 3.2 beer), illegal or illicit drugs, or other mood-altering substances at school, while on school vehicles, or at any school-sponsored event.
 - C. "Illicit drugs" includes steroids and prescription and over-the-counter medications being used for an abusive purpose, i.e., when they are not used in compliance with the prescription or directions for use and are not being used to treat a current health condition of the student.
 - D. "Mood-altering substances" include, but are not limited to, paint, glue, aerosol sprays, salts, incense, and other substances which may be used as an intoxicating substance.
 - E. Violation of this policy will result in imposition of disciplinary measures, pursuant to the technology center's policy on student behavior.
 - F. Student violation of this rule which also constitutes illegal conduct will be reported to law enforcement authorities.

2. Necessary Medications

- A. Students may not retain possession of and self-administer any medication at school for any reason except as permitted by the school's policy on the administration of medicine to students.
- B. Minor students who have a legitimate health need for over-the-counter or prescription medication at school shall deliver such medications to the campus director with a parental authorization, in compliance with Oklahoma law and school policy and procedures regarding administering medicine to students.
- C. Violations of this rule will be reported to a minor student's parents, and may result in discipline which can include suspension.

3. Distribution of Information

- A. Information for students and the parents of minor students about drug and alcohol counseling and rehabilitation and reentry programs in this geographic area is available from the campus director at each site.
- B. Copies of this policy shall be included in the student handbook.

NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY Adopted:

STUDENT SEARCH AND SEIZURE

The superintendent, campus director, or designees are authorized to detain and search any student and any property in the student's possession while on technology center premises, at technology center activities, or in transit under authority of the technology center, for any item possession of which by the student is illegal or prohibited by technology center policy, or for property believed to have been stolen from another student, an employee, or the technology center. The search shall be conducted according to the following guidelines:

Reasonableness

- 1. The decision to search must be based upon a <u>reasonable</u> suspicion that:
 - A. A violation of the law or school policy or rules has occurred or is occurring;
 - B. The student to be searched has committed the violation; and
 - C. Particular evidence of the violation will be discovered in the search.
- 2. In deciding whether a suspicion is reasonable, all the circumstances surrounding the case should be considered, including:
 - A. The student's age, history, and record in school;
 - B. The prevalence and seriousness of the suspected violation;
 - C. The school officials' prior experience in detecting the problem or recognizing suspicious behavior;
 - D. The need to make a search without delay and further investigation;
 - E. The specificity and source of the information used as justification for the search; and
 - F. The particular instructor or official's experience with the student.

<u>Scope</u>

- 1. The scope or extent of the search shall be reasonably related to the kind of objects being searched for, and not excessively intrusive in light of the student's age and sex and the nature of the suspected violation.
- 2. A search commenced to discover a particular kind of item may be expanded or continued for additional items if circumstances warrant.

Discovered Items

- 1. Illegal items or other possessions or substances reasonably determined to be a threat to the safety or security of others may be seized by technology center authorities. These items will immediately be turned over to law enforcement officials for disposition as they see fit.
- 2. Items which are used to disrupt or interfere with the educational process may be temporarily removed from student possession.

Refusal to Submit to Search

A student who refuses to peaceably submit to a search based on reasonable suspicion or who refuses to turn over items discovered as a result of a search may be suspended for such refusals.

<u>Reports</u>

The person conducting the search shall prepare a report to be maintained by the superintendent and campus director, including the date, time, place, names of witnesses, purpose, basis, and result of the search.

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER	Stadents
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

SEARCH AND SEIZURE OF TECHNOLOGY CENTER PROPERTY ASSIGNED TO STUDENT

In order to maintain discipline and to ensure the proper functioning of the educational process, school administrators must have access at all times to all technology center property, including lockers, cabinets, desks, etc. assigned to students. The administration will maintain a confidential file of all lockers (if any) and their combinations and will retain master keys to all lockers, cabinets, etc., as applicable. Thus, although students have privacy rights in their locker/cabinet contents and other technology center property assigned to them as against other students, they do not have privacy rights in their locker/cabinet contents and other technology center property assigned to them as against technology center administrators. No technology center property will be used to store objects or materials that violate school regulations or state and local ordinances. The technology center maintains the right to ensure that lockers, cabinets, desks and other technology center property assigned to students are properly cleaned, and that they do not contain items which should not be kept on technology center property. Lockers, cabinets, desks, and other technology center property assigned to students will be opened periodically for cleaning purposes and to locate class materials. In addition, administrators may open and examine student lockers, cabinets, desks and all technology center property assigned to students for general and specific inspections at any time.

"Sniffer" dogs may properly be used to discover prohibited items concealed in technology center property assigned to students.

Illegal items or other possessions or substances reasonably determined to be a threat to the safety or security of others will be seized by technology center authorities. These items will immediately be turned over to law enforcement officials for disposition as they see fit.

Items which are used to disrupt or interfere with the educational process will be temporarily removed from student possession.

	Students
	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER	
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICINE TO MINOR STUDENTS

<u>Purpose</u>

The purpose of this policy is to identify when district personnel are authorized to administer medication to minor students, when minor students are authorized to self-medicate and how district personnel will maintain, administer, monitor and dispose of minor student medication.

Definitions

For purposes of this policy, these terms have the following definitions:

"Medicine" or "medications" includes prescription medications and over-the-counter medicines such as but not limited to aspirin, cough syrup, medicated ointments and any other item used to treat an illness, disease or malady.

"Parent" means a parent, a court appointed guardian or a person having legal custody of a minor student.

Policy

Under Oklahoma law, a school nurse, an administrator or a designated school employee may administer prescription and nonprescription medications to minor students. Only designated employees who have successfully completed specific training in the administration of nonprescription and prescription medications may administer medication to minor students with legitimate health needs.

Except as provided in this policy and in the technology center's diabetes care and management policy, minor students may not retain possession of or self-administer any medicine. Violation of this rule will be reported to the minor student's parent and may result in discipline, including out-of-school suspension.

As further set out below, the technology center retains the discretion to reject requests for the administration of medication and to discontinue the administration of medication.

The parent must deliver the minor student's medicine to the school administrator in its original container with the parent's written authorization for administration of the medicine. The parent's authorization must identify the minor student, the medicine and include or refer to the label for instructions on administration of the medicine. The administrator or a designated employee will administer the medicine to the minor student pursuant to the parent's instructions and the directions for use on the label or in the physician's prescription. The parent must complete a new authorization form annually and for each change of medication. The technology center will maintain the authorization form as a part of the minor student's health record. Authorization forms will be available in the campus

director's office. A parent who chooses to do so may come to the school and personally dispense medication to the minor student.

The administration of each campus will keep a record of the minor students to whom medicine is administered, the date of administration, the person who administered the medicine and the name or type of medicine administered.

Medications will be stored in a separate locked drawer or cabinet that is readily accessible only to the persons who will administer the medication. Medications requiring refrigeration will be refrigerated in a secure area.

Any person administering medicine to a minor student will participate in training by October l of each year conducted by a school nurse or other health care professional. The training will include:

- Review of state statutes and school rules and regulations (including this policy) regarding administration of medication by school personnel;
- Procedures for administration, documentation, handling and storage of medication; and
- Medication needs of specific minor students, desired effects, potential side effects, adverse reactions and other observations.

Only those persons who successfully complete the training are authorized to administer medication. Each campus site will maintain a current list of those authorized to administer medication at that site.

Minor students who are able to self-administer specific medications, such as inhaled asthma medication or anaphylaxis medication, or use specialized equipment, such as an inhaler or Epinephrine injector, may do so provided such medication and specialized equipment are transported and maintained under the minor students' control in compliance with the following rules:

- A licensed physician or dentist must provide a written order that the minor student has a particular medical condition (asthma, anaphylaxis, etc.), is capable of and has been instructed in the proper method of selfadministration of medication. It is the parent's responsibility to contact the physician and have the physician complete and return the required order.
- The parent must provide a written authorization for self-administration of medication.
- Parents who elect self-medication understand and agree that the technology center, its agents and employees shall incur no liability for any adverse reaction or injury the minor student suffers as a result of self-administration of medication and/or use of specialized equipment.
- The written authorization will terminate at the end of the school year and must be renewed annually.

- If the parent and physician authorize self-medication, the technology center is not responsible for safeguarding the minor students' medications or specialized equipment.
- Minor students who self-medicate are prohibited from sharing or playing with their medication or special equipment. If a minor student engages in these activities the parent will be contacted and a conference will be scheduled with the parent, minor student, nurse and other appropriate persons.
- Minor students will not be allowed to self-administer:
 - Narcotics;
 - Prescription pain killers;
 - Medication used to treat ADD/ADHD or other psychological or behavior disorders; and
 - Other medication hereafter designated in writing by the technology center.
- Except as otherwise provided by an individual minor student's school health plan, minor students may self-administer non-diabetes and non-anaphylaxisrelated injectables only in the campus director's office in the presence of authorized school personnel. Diabetes-related injectables will be administered in accordance with the technology center's diabetes care and management policy.
- Minor students who self-medicate are encouraged to wear Medic Alert bracelets or necklaces.
- The parent will provide an emergency supply of a minor student's inhaled asthma medication or anaphylaxis medication to be administered by school personnel, as required by state law.

Nonprescription Medication

Technology center staff will only administer nonprescription medication with the parent's written authorization and according to label directions or written instructions from the minor student's physician. The medication must be in the original container that indicates:

- Minor student name (affixed to the container);
- Ingredients;
- Expiration date;
- Dosage and frequency;
- Administration route, i.e., oral, drops, etc.; and
- Other directions as appropriate.

Technology center staff will only administer aspirin (acetylsalicylic acid) and products containing salicylic acid with written instructions from the minor student's physician. The parent must provide and maintain a supply of nonprescription medication for the minor student.

Prescription Medication

Technology center staff will only administer prescription medication with written authorization and instructions. Prescription medication must be in the original container that indicates:

- Minor student name;
- Name and strength of medication and expiration date;
- Dosage and directions for administration;
- Name of the licensed physician or dentist;
- Date, name, address and phone number of the pharmacy.

The parent must provide and maintain the supply of prescription medication for the minor student.

The parent must reclaim any remaining medication by the last official day of school closing or within seven days after the prescribing physician discontinues the medication. The designated employee will destroy in a nonrecoverable fashion in the presence of a witness any medication not timely reclaimed. The person who destroys the medication will record the following information:

- Date of destruction;
- Time of destruction;
- Name and quantity of medication destroyed; and
- Manner of destruction of medication

Any and all controlled substances will be destroyed according to state law.

The designated employee will advise the campus director if discontinuance of medication to a minor student is appropriate and assist in informing the parent. Legitimate reasons for discontinuing administration of medication include, but are not limited to the following:

- A legitimate lack of space or facility to adequately store specific medication;
- Lack of cooperation by the minor student, parent and/or prescribing doctor and the technology center;
- An unexpected and/or adverse medical reaction to the medication at school, i.e., mood change, allergic reaction, etc., considered to be harmful to the health and well-being of the minor student;

- Any apparent change in the medication's appearance, odor, or other characteristics that raise reasonable doubts about the quality of the medication; and
- The medication expiration date has passed.

Reference: OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 1-116.2, 70 § 1-116.3

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER	
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

STUDENT DIABETES CARE AND MANAGEMENT

<u>Purpose</u>

The purpose of this policy is to implement the requirements of the Diabetes Management in Schools Act ("Act"), OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 1210.196.

Definitions

For purposes of this policy, these terms have the following definitions:

"Diabetes medical management plan" means the document a student's personal health care team develops that identifies the health services the student may need at school.

"Personal health care team" means the team responsible for managing a student's diabetes and includes the campus director or designee, the volunteer diabetes care assistant, if any, the parent or guardian of a minor student, and to the extent practicable, the physician responsible for the student's diabetes treatment.

"Volunteer diabetes care assistant" means a technology center employee who has volunteered to be a diabetes care assistant and successfully completed the training required by this policy and state law.

Policy

Any technology center employee aware of a student who has diabetes-related needs while at school or while participating in school activities will promptly advise the campus director. The parent of any minor student who will have diabetes-related needs at school or in school activities should promptly advise the campus director.

If the student is a secondary student, the diabetes management procedures will be jointly developed by the technology center and the sending school. If an existing diabetes management plan exists, the technology center will review the plan and coordinate any changes necessary with the parent(s).

A personal health care team will develop a written Diabetes Medical Management Plan ("Plan") for each student who may seek care for diabetes while at school or while participating in a school activity. The Plan will identify the health services the student may need at school. Each member of the student's personal health care team, including the parent of a minor student, will sign the Plan. The personal health care team will review the Plan at least annually. The campus director will make a reasonable effort to find one or more technology center employees willing to serve as a volunteer diabetes care assistant ("Assistant") to assist the student with diabetes care as provided in the student's Plan. The campus director will make a reasonable effort to ensure that an Assistant is available at the school to assist the student when needed. The technology center will not restrict the assignment of a student with diabetes based on the presence of an Assistant.

Technology center personnel will request that the parent or guardian of a minor student provide written authorization for the campus director or Assistant to have access to the student's physician at all times. The technology center will maintain the Plan and related documentation as student health records.

Before undertaking responsibilities as an Assistant, a volunteer must first complete training provided by the State Department of Health in accordance with the Act. The training will include instruction in the following:

- Recognizing the symptoms of hypoglycemia and hyperglycemia;
- Understanding the proper action to take if the student's blood glucose is outside the range indicated in the Plan;
- Understanding the details of the Plan;
- Performing finger sticks to check blood glucose levels, check urine ketone levels and record the results of those checks;
- Properly administering insulin and glucagon and recording the results of the administration;
- Recognizing complications that require the assistant to seek emergency assistance; and
- Understanding the recommended schedules and food intake for the student's meals and snacks, the effect of physical activity on blood glucose and the proper action to be taken if the student's schedule is disrupted.

To continue as an Assistant, the volunteer must annually demonstrate competency in the above training. The campus director or designee will maintain a copy of the training guidelines and the records associated with the training.

With permission from the student or the parent(s) of a minor student, the technology center will provide each technology center employee responsible for supervising or transporting a student with diabetes a form with the following information:

- Student's name;
- Telephone number of a contact person in case of an emergency involving the student; and
- Potential emergencies that may occur due to the diabetes and appropriate responses to such emergencies.

Any technology center employee provided the above information will be informed of applicable health privacy policies.

In accordance with his or her individual Plan and this policy, a student may attend to the management of his or her diabetes, which may include:

- Performing blood glucose level checks;
- Administering insulin through the student's insulin delivery system;
- Treating hypoglycemia and hyperglycemia;
- Unless changed in accordance with this policy, possessing on his or her person at any time, any supplies or specialized equipment necessary to monitor and care for his or her diabetes; and
- Otherwise attending to the management of his or her diabetes in the classroom, any area of the school or grounds, or at any school related activity.

The technology center will provide a private area where the student can attend to his or her diabetes-related needs.

Students who manage their diabetes and personally possess the necessary specialized equipment and supplies under this policy are prohibited from sharing or playing with their equipment or supplies. If a student engages in these activities, a meeting of the personal health care team will be scheduled to address the situation. The technology center is not responsible for safeguarding the specialized equipment or supplies of a student who personally possesses those items.

Students with diabetes are encouraged to wear Medic Alert bracelets or necklaces.

No technology center employee will be subject to any penalty or disciplinary action for refusing to serve as an Assistant. No technology center employee will be subject to any disciplinary proceeding resulting from any action taken in compliance with this policy. Any employee acting in accordance with this policy and law will be immune from civil liability unless the employee's actions rise to the level of reckless or intentional conduct.

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER	
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

FOOD ALLERGIES

The technology center is committed to ensuring equal access to its programs for all students, including students with food allergies. The technology center will make reasonable accommodations to allow students with food allergies to participate in all its programs. The technology center will not tolerate any retaliatory or bullying conduct toward a student due to a food allergy.

Food Allergy and Anaphylaxis Action Plan

A Food Allergy and Anaphylaxis Action Plan ("Plan") will be developed for each student who has a food allergy. The Plan will be based on an interactive meeting between the parent (or adult student) and the assistant superintendent, and will be supported by medical documentation provided by the student's healthcare provider. The Plan will include, at a minimum, the following information:

- specific allergens / ingredients to be avoided
- preventative measures
- method by which employees can easily identify the student
- type of reaction to the allergen
- actions to be taken in case of suspected exposure when no reaction is observed
- actions to be taken when symptoms are present
- reasonable accommodations which will be provided for the student

If the student is a secondary student, the Plan and procedures will be jointly developed by the technology center and the sending school. If a plan exists, the technology center will review the plan and coordinate any changes necessary with the parent(s).

Reasonable accommodations may include actions such as an alternative meal which is as nutritionally comparable as reasonably possible, a meal prepared in a separate area of the kitchen, a meal served at a separate table in the cafeteria, etc. The reasonable accommodations identified during the interactive development of the student's Plan are subject to final approval by school officials. In the event the parent (or adult student) is not satisfied with the results of the interactive meeting or the established Plan, the parent (or adult student) may request a review of the accommodations and/or the Plan by contacting the superintendent in writing within five (5) school days of the development of the Plan.

The Plan will be reviewed/updated through the interactive process at least once per school year.

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

TUITION REFUND

It is the policy of the technology center board of education that students who have paid tuition for adult programs be given refunds under conditions stated in established guidelines. This policy applies when a student officially withdraws from a full-time or short-term adult program.

The term "withdrawal" shall mean written notification by a student of his/her intention to discontinue class attendance.

Procedures

The purpose of these procedures is to establish a set of guidelines for the refund of tuition to students who wish to withdraw from full-time or short-term adult courses (Adult Career Development (ACD) and/or Business/Industry Services (BIS)).

For full-time programs, 100% of the tuition will be refunded if the student withdraws on or before the first day of class through the tenth day of class. No refunds will be given after the tenth day of class.

For short-term adult courses, 100% of the tuition will be refunded if the student withdraws on or before the first day of class. No refunds will be given after the second class meeting date.

POST MILITARY EDUCATION

The board of education recognizes that service members acquire knowledge and skills during military duty. The technology center will award appropriate educational credit in its education programs consistent with the experience earned by military personnel.

In order to be considered for an award of education credit at the technology center, an applicant must have been honorably discharged from the United States Armed Forces within three (3) years from the date of enrollment at the technology center.

The registrar or other employee designated by the superintendent is authorized to meet with the applicant and compare the applicant's education, training and experience with the requirements of the applicant's proposed program of study. The applicant is responsible for supplying the requisite information and records essential to any award of credit. The technology center shall utilize the *Guide to the Evaluation of Educational Experiences in the Armed Services* (published by the American Council on Education) to make this analysis and determine appropriate credit to be awarded. The process of awarding credit for military experience shall be conducted in a manner similar to the review process for transfer of education credits earned at another institution. The decision of the technology center regarding an award of credit is a final decision that is not subject to appeal.

STUDENT GRADES

It is the policy of the technology center board to issue a grade to each student enrolled according to the grading options for career program students outlined below.

Certain terms used in this policy shall have the following meanings:

Course. A portion of a total career program for which a grade is issued and entered on a transcript.

Career Program Student. A secondary or post-secondary student enrolled in a career program, either the morning or afternoon session or both sessions.

Grading Option. Grading options are available for short-term students.

Grading Period. A predetermined length of time for which instructors issue grades that reflect student performance in a course/career program.

Short-Term Student. A student enrolled in any short-term course.

Satisfactory Academic Progress. A student is considered to be making satisfactory academic progress if the student maintains a grade of "C" and the student's attendance is within limits prescribed in the attendance policy. Minimum passing scores for courses may vary according to outside agency or employer requirements. Some programs may have special grading requirements different from "C" to satisfy state and national accreditation quidelines.

Truant. A student is considered to be truant if he/she intentionally fails to comply with the Oklahoma School Attendance Law.

Unsatisfactory Academic Progress. A student is considered to be making unsatisfactory academic progress if the student's grades fall below a "C" and/or absences exceed the limits prescribed in the attendance policy. Unsatisfactory academic progress may be defined differently in programs or courses for which special grading scales exist to meet state or national certifications or other special requirements. Requirements are defined in the applicable student handbook.

Full-Time Career Programs

Grades

1. Student Responsibility. In order to receive a grade, it is the student's responsibility to complete course requirements, return all school-owned books, books and equipment or pay for the same, and pay all tuition, fees and any other indebtedness. Student indebtedness may result in a "hold" being placed on report cards, transcripts and/or other student records until the debt is paid in full.

2. Letter Grades, Grading Scales and Percentages. The following criteria will be used for the assignment of letter grades, grading scales and percentage grades for students participating in full-time courses:

```
A 100 - 90 %
B 89 - 80
C 79 - 70
D 69 - 60
F 59 - 00
I Incomplete
W Withdraw
```

Special grading scales may be used to meet state and national certification, apprenticeship program and other special requirements.

- 3. Incomplete Grades. When a grade of I is issued, the student has ten (10) school days from the end of the grading period to correct the I grade or the I shall recorded as an F.
- 4. Recording Grades. Grades earned are recorded by the instructor in an official grade book or electronic grading system. A printed copy will be archived on the campus at the end of the school year.

Calculating Student Grades

Course Grades. Grading patterns are calculated and established by the instructor(s) and may include, but are not limited to: practice of technical skills grades; written work grades; test grades; project grades; WBL grades. Each instructor's grading pattern will be on file in the campus director's office in the course syllabi. Instructors will give the students a copy of the grading pattern at the beginning of each course. Though not specifically graded, there is no intent in this policy to minimize the value of instructional emphasis on students' attitude, attendance or development of a positive work ethic.

Attendance Impact on Grades

Arrangements to Complete Work Missed. It is the responsibility of the student to contact the instructor and make arrangements to complete work missed. No penalty will be assessed if work is made up in the required time frame. The normal time frame is considered to be one (1) day for each day missed. In situations which require more time due to the nature of the program, the instructor is to set the date when make-up work is due.

Student Progress

- 1. Secondary Student Progress Reports. At the end of the 5th week of each grading period, Secondary Student Progress Reports will be issued to any full-time student, or student with an identified IEP, not making satisfactory academic progress. Student Progress Reports may be issued for satisfactory or excellent academic progress. Student Progress Reports may be issued at other times if deemed necessary by the instructor.
- 2. Academic Probation. A student having unsatisfactory academic progress will be

notified by an administrator or his/her designee and placed on probation. A secondary student placed on probation will have until the next grading period to achieve satisfactory academic progress or face possible removal from the program. A post-secondary student placed on probation may have up to five (5) weeks to achieve satisfactory academic progress. Failure to achieve satisfactory academic progress may result in removal from the program.

- 3. Failing Grades. A secondary student failing a semester may be dropped from the course(s) and/or returned to his/her sending school. A post-secondary student who receives financial aid and fails to maintain satisfactory academic progress may be disqualified for further financial aid. A post-secondary student who fails to maintain satisfactory academic progress may be dropped from the program. In career programs where requirements by an outside agency exist, criteria for failure of the course(s) are defined in the applicable student handbook. If a student fails a course within a career program, guidelines for any permitted repeat of that course are defined in the applicable student handbook. Student removal from a course or career program shall be based on recommendation by the instructor and approved by the campus director or assistant director.
- 4. Reporting Grades. Career Program instructors will enter into the permanent records 9-week and semester grades as well as course grades for each student by the last day of the semester. The campus registrar will maintain the permanent student records and issue official transcripts. Secondary student grades will be sent by the campus registrar to each secondary student's high school. Semester grades are recorded on he student's transcript and become a part of his/her permanent high school record. Report cards may be issued at the conclusion of each grading period.

	Students
NORTHWEST TECHNOLOGY CENTER	
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY	
	Adopted:

WORK-BASED LEARNING

It is the policy of the technology center to provide structured and meaningful Work-Based Learning (WBL) for students. The board recognizes the value of providing students with WBL experiences in addition to the traditional training received in the classroom, laboratory and/or shop setting. Students will participate in on-campus or on-site occupationally-related activities, conjoined with business/industry personnel, when students demonstrate the appropriate level of readiness.

General Guidelines

The following options are approved for WBL in all programs:

- 1. Clinical. In most cases, a group of students assigned to worksites with the instructor being available on-site.
- 2. Cooperative Education. A paid part-time work experience in which the student is released from school for part of the day.
- 3. Enterprise. A small business operated within the program that replicates a business in the larger community.
- 4. Expert in Residence. An industry expert regularly visits the school to work with students and instructors, and hosts them at worksite (also by on-line visits).
- 5. Internship. An on-the-job training experience that is highly selective and intensive. May require a commitment to additional training beyond high school or subsequent employment at the worksite, which may include mentoring or on-line experience, and service learning.
- 6. Integrated Project. A special project integrating studies/experiences from two (2) or more program areas of the technology center, exploring career directions and connections.
- 7. Job Shadowing. A student "shadows" an employee at a worksite to learn about a particular skill, occupation or industry.

Each student should be given the opportunity to participate in one or more WBL experiences, with the specific assignments chosen by the instructor and mutually agreed upon by sponsor company and student. In programs that include a WBL experiences as a curriculum unit with a required length, one or more of the seven WBL options may be used (or combined) to satisfy the requirement. WBL activities may be paid or unpaid. The WBL must be directly related to the program competencies for which the student has been trained. The student, instructor and sponsor company will mutually agree upon the hours of participation of on-site WBL activities. The student, instructor and sponsor company will

mutually agree upon the hours of participation of on-site WBL activities. The student must be at least 16 years of age and provide transportation if performing as the only technology center participant in an on-site WBL activity at a sponsor company. Students driving personal vehicles must have a valid driver's license and liability insurance. Drivers transporting students are required to have written permission of ALL parent/quardians of minor age passengers. Minor age drivers must have parent/quardian authorization to transport students. WBL activities may be assigned at any point during the program, with the essential criteria being as follows: (1) the WBL experience must be appropriate for the student's level of development and competence; and (b) schedules and training plan will be mutually agreeable between student, sponsor company, and the technology center. A student performing as the only technology center participant in an on-site option extending beyond two (2) weeks must have maintained a 90% program attendance. A student performing as the only technology center participant in an on-site option extending beyond two (2) weeks must maintain a minimum grade of "C" prior to participation. Memorandum of Understanding must be on file signed by student and parent/quardian of minor age student. A WBL Agreement must be on file signed by a representative of the sponsor company.

<u>Procedures</u>

The instructor, in consultation with the program advisory committee will determine the WBL option(s) that are appropriate with the approval of campus administration. The instructor will verify that WBL Agreements, student/parent/guardian Memorandum of Understanding, and all information forms are on file. The instructor will verify that the sponsor company has been toured by technology center personnel and determined appropriate. The campus director or designee will be notified of the name of student(s) participating in a WBL option, the location, date and time.

Appraisal

An appraisal will be completed by the student(s) participating in the WBL experience at the end of the activity or every two (2) weeks for extended options. An appraisal will be completed by a representative of the sponsor company at the end of the activity or every two (2) for extended options. An appraisal will be completed by the instructor at the end of the activity or every two (2) weeks for extended options. The appraisals may be hand-delivered, emailed, faxed or conveyed electronically to the instructor. It is the responsibility of the student to assure the sequence of the above steps is completed. The ratings will be recorded in the instructor's grade book under the appropriate objective and identified as a WBL experience. The grade will be recorded on the scope and sequence grade sheet under the appropriate course code and identified as a WBL experience.

LIVE WORK

It is the technology center board's policy that Live Work projects shall be allowed within the instructional programs, as long as the projects are directly related to the instructional objectives of the individual programs. The term "Live Work" shall mean work performed on personal property items of employees, students or clients by technology center students as a part of the instructional process. "Live Work" can also include projects such as meal preparation / catering by the Culinary Program and business projects by the Business and Computer / Digital Design Programs. In these cases the instructor and the campus director will determine appropriate charges for materials and lab fees prior to starting the project. Live Work projects will not be performed for board members, administrators, the specific instructor of the Live Work project, and any immediate family members of these individuals. Live Work shall cause no gift of technology center resources, no conflict of interest to occur, or no use of student labor for profit.

Live Work is performed by students under the direction and supervision of technology center instructors. Live Work is an integral part of the instructional process to assist students in achieving competency in the occupational area and to provide students with "hands on" experience. Examples of Live Work include, but are not limited to: vehicle servicing and repair, building construction, remodeling of existing buildings, electrical, plumbing, welding projects, carpentry work, meal and food preparation/catering, and business projects. These are examples only and not intended to limit activities which may constitute Live Work.

The sale of items made or grown by students and the delivery of personal services does not constitute Live Work. Examples of items not considered Live Work include, but are not limited to: the sale of plants; cosmetology, nail and facial services; machined replicas; welded products for sale; and child care services.

Oualifications

All Live Work projects are selected in relation to the instructional objectives of the individual program. Live Work projects should enhance the instructional process rather than replace it. The program instructor shall have the responsibility to inform the customer whether the proposed project does or does not fit into the instructional process. The campus director shall have final approval of whether a Live Work project will be allowed in the instructional program. Instructional benefit to the student will be the major determining factor in approval/disapproval of a project.

Before any Live Work is begun, the customer must acknowledge, in writing, the customer's understanding and agreement that: (a) the work will be performed by students; (b) there will be no charge for the services performed by the students; and (c) the customer will be charged for materials, parts and lab fees.

Live Work projects may be done either on campus of off campus. Any off campus projects must have: (a) campus director or designee approval; and (b) parent/guardian approval for

secondary students and students under 18 years of age, with appropriate technology center local field trip permission form completed.

Technology center transportation may be required for off campus work projects. Instructors shall take the entire class of students or make arrangements with the campus director or designee for supervision of those who stay behind.

<u>Fees</u>

The total cost of all parts and materials required to complete the project will be charged to the customer. A lab fee will be charges to cover small consumable items used in the project. Fees are as follows:

Material and Parts Cost	<u>Lab Fee</u>
Less than \$100	\$10 flat fee
Greater than or equal to \$100	10% flat fee
Paint Booth	\$10 per hour
Paint Booth Bake Cycle	\$20 flat fee

Live Work Orders

Live Work orders will be initiated for every Live Work project. A work order number (obtained in the campus administrative office from a master reference list) will be assigned to the Live Work order before any work is initiated. When a Live Work order number has been assigned, the customer's name, address, telephone number, and a description of the work to be done will be included on the work order. The customer must authorize the work by signing the work order. A copy of the Live Work order will be visible on the project when possible. All Live Work orders will be available for daily inspection. Parts, supplies and costs will be listed on the Live Work order. Completed Live Work orders will be handed into the campus administrative office by the instructor.

Material Purchasing

Technology center purchasing procedures will be followed when requesting materials to complete a Live Work project. All requisitions will have the Live Work order number placed on the form and will be coded to the Live Work account.

Subcontractor work will be done with a purchase order. The cost of the subcontractor work will be included on the Live Work order.

With instructor approval, parts may be supplied by the customer. In those situations the instructor will determine the approximate cost of the parts to determine the amount of the lab fee. The parts and "no charge for parts" will be shown on the Live Work order.

Payment for Completed Live Work

The instructor will notify the customer when the Live Work project is completed. All

payments for Live Work projects will be made in the campus administrative office by the customer. The instructor will verify complete payment has been made before releasing the Live Work project to the customer. No Live Work project is to leave the campus until complete payment is made.

STUDENT ORGANIZATIONS: SPONSORSHIP AND CLOSED STUDENT FORUMS

The board is committed to the proposition that student participation in student activities and organizations can advance educational goals and otherwise benefit students and that technology center policies should further students' opportunities for participation. The board also is mindful that the primary purpose of the technology center is to educate its students and that the board must maintain control and oversight of students' activities and experiences while attending school.

Therefore, the board has determined that only school-sponsored student organizations, as that term is defined in this policy, will be permitted to utilize school facilities for meetings or other functions. The board intends by this policy to create a "closed forum" in regard to the utilization of technology center facilities by student organizations and groups, in that the use of technology center facilities by student organizations and groups will be restricted to those student organizations and groups that are sponsored by the technology center as provided in this policy.

Technology Center-Sponsored Student Organizations

The technology center may sponsor student organizations that the board determines are in furtherance of and consistent with the technology center's educational objectives and directly related to its curriculum ("technology center-sponsored student organizations").

An organization shall be considered to be directly related to the technology center's curriculum: (1) if the subject matter of the group is actually taught or will soon be taught; (2) if the subject matter of the group concerns the body of courses as a whole; (3) if participation in the group is required for a particular course; (4) if participation in the group results in academic credit; or (5) if it is part of or an adjunct to student government, relating directly to the curriculum, to the extent that it addresses concerns, solicits opinions and formulates proposals pertaining to the body of courses offered by the technology center.

Technology center-sponsored student organizations shall have a faculty sponsor, whose teaching field, education, background or other expertise is reasonably related to the purpose and goals of the group, and who shall receive extra-duty compensation.

Application for technology center sponsorship shall be made by the proposed faculty sponsor and at least five (5) students who intend to participate in the organization. Each proposed student organization will submit its membership requirements, organizational structure and provisions of a constitution or other document setting out its organizational purpose and structure, subject to approval by the superintendent.

After the proposed organization and its constitution have received preliminary approval from the superintendent, the board shall review and approve or disapprove the organization for sponsorship based on the standards set out in this policy and, if requested, on an opinion rendered by the technology center's legal counsel that the proposed organization meets the standards of this policy.

Only technology center-sponsored student organizations shall be permitted to meet in or otherwise use technology center facilities.

Notice Regarding Student Organizations and Parental Right to Withhold Permission to Participate

The technology center shall provide annual notice to parents and guardians about technology center-sponsored student organizations in the student handbook and on the technology center's website. The notice shall include at least a list of the names of the clubs or organizations; their individual missions or purposes; and the names of the faculty advisors.

If technology center-sponsored student organizations are created or formed after the annual notice is distributed, the technology center shall send supplemental notice through the technology center's website or by any other means it deems appropriate. Like the annual notice, the supplemental notice shall specify at least the name of the organization, its mission or purpose and the name of its faculty advisor.

Parents and guardians may notify the technology center that they are withholding permission for their student to join or participate in one or more extracurricular technology center-sponsored student organizations. However, parents and guardians may not withhold permission for student participation in clubs and organizations that are necessary for a required course of instruction.

Parents and guardians are solely responsible for preventing their student from participating in a club or organization for which they have withheld their permission. Parents and guardians are also solely responsible for retrieving their student from attendance at a club or organization for which permission has been withheld.

Nothing in this policy prevents a club or organization from meeting when a student who is not authorized to participate is present.

The technology center may, but is not required to, provide annual (or supplemental) notice to parents and guardians about independent student-organized groups, as they are not groups directed or controlled by the technology center. If notice of such groups is provided, the notice shall indicate that the group is an independent student-organized group.